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December 10, 2007

The Colorado Water Conservation Board
Water Supply Planning and Finance Section
Attn: Kirk Russell, P.E.

1580 Logan Street, Suite 750

Denver, CO 80203

Re:  Colorado Water Conservation Board, Construction Fund Loan Application
Dear Mr. Russell:

Enclosed please find a Loan Application and Loan Feasibility Study for the Republican
River Compact Compliance Pipeline. Please advise us if any further information is required.

Very truly yours,

zfvmé»hwf%;%\

Dennis M. Montgomery

cc: RRWCD Board of Directors
Stan Murphy, General Manager
Ken Knox, Deputy State Engineer
Kathryn Radke, Program Manager, Division of Water Resources
James E. Slattery, P.E.
Richard A. Westmore, P.E.
Steven R. Townsley, P.E.



COLORADO WATER CONSERVATION BOARD
CONSTRUCTION FUND L.OAN APPLICATION

Instructions: This application should be typed or printed neatly with black ink. Attach additional
sheets as necessary to fully answer any question or to provide additional information that would be
helpful in the evaluation of this application. When finished, please return this application to:

THE COLORADO WATER CONSERVATION BOARD

Water Supply Planning and Finance Section

1580 Logan St., Suite 750

Denver, CO 80203

Attn: Kirk Russell, P.E. or Bruce Johnson, P.E.

Phone Number 303/866-3449 - Fax Number 303/894-2578

12

e-mail: itk rsselli@gisisie co us or bruce_Iohnennisisiaie oo ns

Part A. - Description of the Applicant (Generally, the applicant is also the prospective owner and

sponsor of the proposed project. If this is not the case, please contact the CWCB staff before

completing this application.)

1. Name of applicant:_Re
Water C :on District Water Activity E .

Mailing Address:_410 Main Strect, Suite 8, Wray, Colorado 80758

Business Phone Number: (920)332-3552 _ = Fax Phone Number: (970)332-3553
Federal ID Number_68-0596268 __ e-mail Address mwed@centurytelnet

2. Person to contact regarding this application:

Business Phone Number (303 )296-8100 ~  Home Phone Number ( )

e-mail Address_davidrobbins@hillandrobhins.com

3. Type of organization (Ditch Co., Irrigation District, Municipality, etc.):_Water Conservation
Distri 4 - .




CWCB Construction Fund Loan Application

months of January, April, July and October.

Is the organization incorporated in the State of Colorado? YES __ NO_X_ (IfYES, please

include a copy of the articles of incorporation, and the bylaws with this application form.)
(The RRWCD was created by state statute and is a body corporate pursuant to C.R.S. § 37-50-103.
The RRWCD WAE is a water activity enterprise established by resolution of the RRWCD Board of
Directors pursuant to C.R.S. § 37-45.1-103.)

4. Please provide a brief description of the owner's existing water supply facilities and describe
any existing operational or maintenance problems. Attach separate sheets if needed, and a map

of the service area. The RRWCD and the RRWCD WAE do not currently own water supply

facilities

For existing facilities indicate: _Not applicable.

Number of shareholders or Number of customers served
Current Assessment per share $ Number of shares

Number of acres irrigated Water Right: CFS.
Average water diverted per year: acre-feet.

Part B. - Description of the Project

1. Name of the project or facility _Republican River Compact Compliance Pipeline

2. Purpose of this loan application. Check one.
X New project

Rehabilitation or replacement of existing facility

Enlargement of existing facility

Emergency Repair
Other (describe)

3. If the project is for rehabilitation of an existing reservoir, is the reservoir currently under a
storage restriction order from the State Engineer? YES _~ NO_

4. General location of the project. (Please include county, and approximate distance and direction
from nearest town, as well as legal description, if known. _The Republican River Compact
Compliance Pipeline will be located in Yuma County, Colorado, and will extend approximately




CWCB Construction Fund Loan Application

Estimated cost of the project. Please include estimated engineering costs, and estimated
construction costs, if known.

Estimated Engineering Costs: ~ $_1.88 million

Estimated Construction Costs:  $_18.83 million

Estimated Other Costs:  $_40-50 million ( water rights purchase)
Estimated Total Costs:  $_60.71 to 70.71 million

10. Loan amount and terms you are requesting.

Requested Loan Amount:  $_40-45 million (Usually 75-90 % of Est. Total Costs)
Term (length) of loan: 30 years  (Usually 10, 20, or 30 years)
Interest Rate: 2.25 %  (Please call for our current rates)

Part C. - Project Sponsor Financial Information

Because the CWCB Construction Fund is a revolving fund, it is important that the project sponsor
have the financial capacity to repay any loans made by the CWCB. The following information is
needed to assist the CWCB in a preliminary assessment of the applicant's financial capacity. It is
also requested that the project sponsor submit with this application, copies of the three most recent
annual reports, financial statements, corporate reports or other current documentation of financial
condition and operations.

1.

List any existing long-term liability (multi-year) or indebtedness that exceeds one thousand
dollars. For example, bank loans, government agency loans, bond issues, accounts payable, etc.
Include names and addresses of lenders, amounts, due dates and maturity dates. Attach a
separate schedule, if needed.

Remaining Annual Maturity
Lender Name & Address Amount Payment Date

The RRWCD and the RRWCD WAE have no outstanding loans or bond issues.
The RRWCD WAE has committed to provide local cost-sharing for the Republican River

Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program (CREP) and the Environmental Quality

Improvement Program (EQIP).

Are any of the above liabilities now in default, or been in default at any time in the past?
YES NO _X . IfYES, please give detailed explanation.

3. Please provide a brief narrative description of sources of funding, in addition to the CWCB,



CWCB Construction Fund Loan Application

which have been explored for this project (Examples would be Banks, USDA Rural
Development, NRCS, Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority, Colorado

Division of Local Government, etc) _Ihe_RRwCDJ:as_explomd_smmas_of_ﬁmdmg.fmm

4. What collateral will you be offering for this loan? Possibilities include a pledge of revenues,
the project itself, real estate, water rights. _A pledge of revenues from nse fees

Date _December 7, 2007
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Executive Summary

The Republican River Compact Compliance Pipeline is critical if the State of Colorado is
to comply with the Republican River Compact. The State of Colorado exceeded its
compact allocations in 2003, 2004, 2005, and 2006, and Colorado is expected to
exceed its compact allocations for decades into the future without the Compact
Compliance Pipeline.

The Republican River Water Conservation District (RRWCD) was formed in 2004 to
assist the State of Colorado to comply with the Compact, and the RRWCD, acting
through its water activity enterprise, is seeking a loan of at least $60 million from the
CWCB Water Project Construction Fund to purchase rights to designated ground water
and to construct a Compact Compliance Pipeline capable of delivering 15,000 acre-feet
of ground water to the North Fork of the Republican River to offset stream depletions in
order to comply with the Compact. The Final Settlement Stipulation in the U.S.
Supreme Court case of Kansas v. Nebraska and Colorado allows the acquisition or
construction of wells for the purpose of offsetting stream depletions in order to comply
with the State’s compact allocations. The total cost of the project is estimated to be $61
to $71 million. The construction of a Compact Compliance Pipeline to deliver up to
15,000 acre-feet of water per year is feasible and will be paid for by an increase in use
fees. The project will remove the threat of curtailment of diversions for more than
500,000 irrigated acres in the Republican River Basin.

The RRWCD will also seek a direct financial contribution from the State of Colorado for
the Compact Compliance Pipeline because the project will allow the State of Colorado
to avoid paying damages for exceeding the State’s compact allocations due to ground
water impacts that occurred decades ago.
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1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1. Purpose of the Republican River Compact Compliance Pipeline

In December 2002, the State of Colorado entered into a Final Settlement Stipulation
with the States of Kansas and Nebraska to bring an end to the U.S. Supreme Court
case of Kansas v. Nebraska and Colorado. In the Final Settlement Stipulation, the
States agreed to the development of a ground water model (the RRCA Groundwater
Model) to determine stream flow depletions caused by well pumping in the Republican
River Basin and to a five-year running average to determine compliance with the
Republican River Compact (“Compact”). The U.S. Supreme Court approved the
Stipulation on May 19, 2003, and accepted the recommendations in the Final Report of
the Special Master, including dismissal of the case with prejudice, which became
effective when the Special Master certified the development of the RRCA Groundwater
Model by the three States.

The Republican River Water Conservation District (“RRWCD”) was established by
Colorado statute in 2004 to assist the State of Colorado to comply with the Compact.
The RRWCD Board of Directors established a water activity enterprise and imposed
use fees on the diversion of water to provide revenues for programs to retire irrigated
acreage in the basin to assist the State with compact compliance.

Since December 2002, the State of Colorado has exceeded its annual allocations of
beneficial consumptive use under the Compact by an average of 11,350 acre-feet per
year. This was not the situation expected when the State of Colorado entered into the
Final Settlement Stipulation. In fact, it was expected that hydrologic conditions would
return to average or above-average conditions after several years of drought in the
basin and that limited retirement of irrigated acreage would bring Colorado into compact
compliance. For that reason, the RRWCD Board of Directors focused its efforts until
recently on providing local cost-sharing for federal programs to voluntarily retire irrigated
acreage in the basin. When the State of Colorado continued to exceed its Compact
allocations in 2005 and 2006, the focus shifted to construction of a Compact
Compliance Pipeline.

While the stream depletions calculated by the RRCA Groundwater Model resulting from
well pumping in Colorado are extremely small in comparison to the total well pumping in
the basin, they are primarily the result of well pumping that occurred decades ago. As a
result, shutting off well pumping in the basin in Colorado would not bring Colorado into
compact compliance for decades under current conditions; indeed, curtailing all
beneficial consumptive use of water in the basin in Colorado, including precompact
surface water rights and draining Bonny Reservoir, would not bring Colorado into
compact compliance for years under current conditions. Thus, the only feasible means
to achieve compact compliance is to construct a pipeline to transport ground water from
wells in the basin to one of the tributaries of the Republican River for credit to offset
stream depletions. The Final Settlement Stipulation specifically allowed for wells that
would be acquired or constructed for this purpose.



This Loan Feasibility Study addresses the need for and the feasibility of acquiring rights
to ground water and the construction of a Compact Compliance Pipeline. The Colorado
Water Conservation Board provided a $50,000 grant for a feasibility study, which has
been used to evaluate alternatives for a Compact Compliance Pipeline.

1.2. Project Sponsor — The Republican River Water Conservation District
(RRWCD) and its Water Activity Enterprise (WAE)

The Republican River Water Conservation District (RRWCD) was established by
Senate Bill 04-235 in 2004 to assist the State of Colorado to comply with the Republican
River Compact. A copy of 88 37-50-101 through 142 is attached. The RRWCD is
managed and controlled by a 15-member board of directors comprised of one member
appointed by the county commissioners of each of the seven counties wholly or partially
within the RRWCD, one member appointed by the boards of the seven ground water
management districts within the RRWCD, and one member appointed by the Colorado
Ground Water Commission. See § 37-50-104.

The RRWCD Board of Directors is authorized to establish a water activity enterprise
pursuant to article 45.1 of title 37 of the Colorado Revised Statutes and established the
RRWCD Water Activity Enterprise (WAE) in October 2004. The general powers of the
board of directors are set forth in section 37-50-107. A copy of the resolution
establishing the RRWCD WAE is attached.

The RRWCD Board of Directors is authorized to impose a use fee on the diversion of
water within the district and has established a use fee of $5.50 per assessed irrigated
acre on diversions of ground water for irrigation use by post-compact wells within the
district. There are approximately 500,500 assessed irrigated acres in the basin irrigated
by post-compact wells. Use fees on the diversion of ground water for irrigation currently
generate nearly $2.75 million in revenues annually for the RRWCD WAE. The RRWCD
Board of Directors also imposed a use fee of $4.40 per acre-foot on post-compact
diversions of ground water for municipal and commercial use. Municipal and
commercial diversions within the district are small, but generated an additional $43,388
in 2007.

The RRWCD WAE has used revenues from use fees primarily to provide local cost-
sharing for federal programs designed to retire irrigated acreage in the basin, including
the Republican River Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program (CREP) and the
Environmental Quality Improvement Program (EQIP). To date, approximately 30,000
irrigated acres have been voluntarily retired in the basin under CREP and EQIP, or
approximately five percent (5%) of the irrigated acreage in the basin. An amendment to
the Republican River CREP designed to retire an additional 30,000 irrigated acres has
been submitted to the U.S. Department of Agriculture for approval. The RRWCD WAE
has committed to provide local cost-sharing for the Republican River CREP
amendment.



1.3. Project Area

The RRWCD is located in northeastern Colorado and includes all of Yuma and Phillips
Counties and those portions of Kit Carson, Lincoln, Logan, Sedgwick, and Washington
Counties that overlie the Ogallala Aquifer. A map of the RRWCD is attached.

The RRWCD encompasses about 7,761 square miles or about 7.5% of Colorado’s
104,247 square miles. There are approximately 545,000 irrigated acres within the
RRWCD. With the exception of approximately 3,000 acres irrigated by surface water,
virtually all the acreage in the basin is irrigated with ground water from the Ogallala
Aquifer. In 2002, irrigated land in the Republican River Basin accounted for
approximately twenty-two percent (22%) of the irrigated acres in Colorado.

1.4. Land Uses Within the Republican River Basin

The Republican River Basin overlies the Ogallala Aquifer, a regional underground
aquifer system underlying portions of seven states from South Dakota to the Texas
panhandle, including portions of the Republican River Basin in Colorado, Nebraska, and
Kansas.

In 1965, the Colorado Ground Water Management Act was enacted, which created the
Colorado Ground Water Commission and allowed the Commission to establish
designated ground water basins. The Management Act applied a modified doctrine of
prior appropriation to designated ground water to permit the full economic development
of such ground water.

In 1966 the Ogallala Aquifer in the Republican River Basin in Colorado was included in
the Northern High Plains Designated Ground Water Basin. At that time, there was
limited well development in the basin. However, improvements in center pivot sprinkler
irrigation systems allowed the development of land that was more difficult to irrigate with
flood irrigation methods, and approximately 4,000 final permits have been issued within
the Northern High Plains Basin. Issuance of permits in the basin slowed during the
1980s and essentially ceased by 1990. The Colorado Ground Water Commission
recognized that there was limited recharge to the Ogallala Aquifer in the basin relative
to the large amount of water in storage in the aquifer and authorized controlled mining
of ground water in the basin based on a rate of depletion of 40% over 25 years. This
was later amended to be 40% over 100 years.

In 1974, the Colorado Supreme Court ruled that ground water taking over a century to
reach a surface stream was not part of the water subject to appropriation under the
Colorado Constitution and could be managed separately as designated ground water.
Kuiper v. Lundvall, 529 P.2d 1328 (Colo. 1974). At that time, no one thought that
ground water in the Ogallala Aquifer had been apportioned by the Republican River
Compact or that withdrawals from the aquifer were subject to the Compact.



2.0 WATER DEMANDS AND WATER RIGHTS
2.1. Water Supply Demands

In 1978, withdrawals of ground water in the Republican River Basin reached
approximately 1,040,000 acre-feet per year. In 2005, ground water pumping was
approximately 750,000 acre-feet per year. Ground water impacts from ground water
diversions in Colorado included in the RRCA Compact Accounting averaged
approximately 25,370 acre-feet per year over the period 2002-2006. These impacts are
primarily due to ground water diversions that occurred decades ago.

Starting in 2003, Colorado has exceeded its compact allocations by an average of
11,350 acre-feet per year. Some reduction in the amount that Colorado has exceeded
its compact allocations is expected in the future as the result of irrigated acreage
retirement programs supported by the RRWCD. However, it is projected that the deficit
will increase gradually to 15,000 acre-feet in 2039.

The expected yield of the Compact Compliance Pipeline is 15,000 acre-feet per year,
which should be adequate to ensure compact compliance for the 30-year period of
repayment of the CWCB loan. The Compact Compliance Pipeline will be designed to
deliver 15,000 acre-feet of ground water over a nine-month period so that there will
flexibility to reduce deliveries in years of higher water supply.

2.2.  Water Rights

The RRWCD WAE does not currently own rights to ground water that could be used for
the Compact Compliance Pipeline. The analysis of alternatives below discusses
possible sources of ground water for the Compact Compliance Pipeline. The preferred
alternative is to acquire existing rights to designated ground water and to transfer the
historical consumptive use of those rights to new wells that will supply the Compact
Compliance Pipeline. See Section 3.4 below.

3.0 PROJECT DESCRIPTION
3.1. Purpose and Background of the Compact Compliance Pipeline

The Final Settlement Stipulation entered into by the States of Kansas, Nebraska, and
Colorado in the U.S. Supreme Court case of Kansas v. Nebraska and Colorado in 2002
provided for the dismissal of all claims for damages through December 2002, and all
three States agreed that compact accounting would be done based on a five-year
running average, beginning in 2003. The first five-year period ends at the end of 2007.

Colorado’s beneficial consumptive use has exceeded its compact allocations in 2003,
2004, 2005, and 2006 by approximately 11,350 acre-feet per year. Due to drought
conditions in 1999-2002, it was anticipated that Colorado would exceed its Compact
allocations in 2003 and 2004; however, it was expected that hydrologic conditions would
then return to average or above-average conditions, which would bring Colorado close
to compliance with the Compact for a number of years. Eventually, because the RRCA



Groundwater Model has indicated that ground water impacts from well pumping that
occurred decades ago will increase, it was expected that a Compact Compliance
Pipeline project would be necessary to offset calculated ground water impacts;
however, it was assumed that a pipeline project would not be needed for a number of
years, especially if precipitation returned to normal and programs to retire irrigated
acreage were implemented. The Compact Accounting for 2005 and 2006 therefore
came as a surprise and prompted action by the State Engineer and the RRWCD.

The Colorado State Engineer has proposed rules and regulations to curtail diversions
within a Curtailment Zone three miles from the North Fork of the Republican River,
Chief Creek, the Arikaree River, the South Fork of the Republican River, and Landsman
Creek beginning in 2009 if the State of Colorado is not in compliance with the Compact.

The Final Settlement Stipulation allows the acquisition or construction of wells for the
purpose of offsetting stream depletions in order to comply with a State’s compact
allocations, provided that such wells do not cause any new net depletion to stream flow
either annually or long-term. The Stipulation also provides that augmentation plans and
related accounting procedures submitted under this provision of the Stipulation shall be
approved by the Republican River Compact Administration (RRCA) prior to
implementation. The Stipulation further provides that augmentation credit for wells
acquired or constructed for the purpose of offsetting stream depletions shall be
calculated in accordance with RRCA Accounting Procedures and by using the RRCA
Groundwater Model.

3.2.  Analysis of Alternatives

1. No action.

2. Purchase existing rights to designated ground water and transfer the
historical consumptive use of those rights to a Compact Compliance
Pipeline.

3. Construct new wells based on new appropriations and/or amendments to

the Ground Water Commission rules and regulations to provide a water
supply for a Compact Compliance Pipeline.

3.3. Alternative 1

No action would result in the State of Colorado exceeding its allocations under the
Compact for decades into the future. The Colorado State Engineer’s proposed rules
and regulations will curtail diversions within a Curtailment Zone, but these Compact
Rules will not achieve compact compliance without a Compact Compliance Pipeline.
Because Nebraska and Colorado will undoubtedly exceed their Compact allocations in
the first five-year running average (2003-2007), Kansas will likely bring an action to
enforce compliance with the Compact. Thus, no action would likely lead to a demand
that all well pumping in the Republican River Basin in Colorado be curtailed and that the
State of Colorado pay damages for exceeding its compact allocations. Turning more
than 500,000 irrigated acres in the basin into dryland farms or rangeland would have a



devastating impact on the local economy, not to mention the overall impact on the
economy of the State of Colorado. It would also expose the State of Colorado to an
award of damages for violations of the Compact for years into the future because the
effects of pumping that occurred decades ago is only now beginning to show up as
ground water impacts calculated by the RRCA Groundwater Model.

3.4. Alternative 2

Alternative 2 is to purchase existing rights to designated ground water used for irrigation
in the Northern High Plains Designated Ground Water Basin and to change those rights
so they can be delivered in a pipeline to the North Fork of the Republican River for
credit to offset stream depletions pursuant to the Final Settlement Stipulation. Section
I11.B.1.k of the Stipulation specifically allows wells to be acquired or constructed for this
purpose, subject to approval by the RRCA. A requirement of the Stipulation is that such
wells shall not cause any new net depletion to stream flow either annually or long-term.
The determination of net depletions from such wells will be computed by the RRCA
Groundwater Model and included in the State’s Computed Beneficial Consumptive Use.

Evaluation of practical locations where Colorado would receive credit for the delivery of
water and locations where wells could be used as a water supply for the Compact
Compliance Pipeline quickly focused on locations north of the North Fork of the
Republican River. The South Fork of the Republican River was ruled out because the
Compact gage is located at Benkelman, Nebraska, approximately 40 miles from the
Colorado-Nebraska state line and stream losses on the South Fork would make a
Compact Compliance Pipeline to the South Fork infeasible. The Arikaree River was
also ruled out because the saturated thickness of the aquifer in the area was
considerably less than on the north side of the North Fork of the Republican River. The
saturated thickness of the aquifer north of the North Fork is approximately 200 feet and
the aquifer is highly productive in the area. Thus, wells in that area would provide a
long-term water supply for the Compact Compliance Pipeline and would require fewer
wells, lowering well construction and pipeline costs. Discussions with landowners to
acquire existing rights to designated ground water are being pursued at the present
time. Because of the confidentiality of the discussions, the specific rights are not
described in this Study, but could be provided separately if required.

3.5. Alternative 3

Alternative 3 is to construct new wells that would divert unappropriated ground water
under the Ground Water Commission (GWC) rules and regulations. A variant of this
alternative would be to amend the GWC rules and regulations to allow new Compact
Compliance Wells to be constructed to withdraw ground water in areas that are over-
appropriated if the well owners in the area waive any claim of injury or consent to the
construction of new wells. Under the Final Settlement Stipulation, such new wells shall
not cause any new net depletion to stream flow either annually or long-term. To offset
the depletions to stream flow from the new wells, retirement of rights to designated
ground water under the RRWCD’s CREP and EQIP contracts would be used to offset
such depletions.



Slattery Aqua Engineering has identified three well locations where unappropriated
ground water is available in the basin at locations close enough to the North Fork to be
considered for the Compact Compliance Pipeline (“satellite well field”). The net amount
of unappropriated water that would be available for the Compact Compliance Pipeline is
approximately 7,500 acre-feet, which is not sufficient for the entire project and would
have to be combined with purchasing existing rights to designated ground water or new
Compact Compliance Wells. In addition, the pipeline distance would be considerably
greater than Alternative 2, and the willingness of the landowners to negotiate for well
sites and pipeline easements is unknown.

The additional pipeline cost of this satellite well field if combined with existing wells
would be less than the estimated cost to acquire existing rights to designated ground
water; however, there is considerable oil and gas development in the area of the
satellite well field, which creates uncertainty in the cost estimates for pipeline
construction. In addition, landowner cooperation is not assured. Also, there is some
concern that the RRCA would not approve such a plan, which would then require
invoking the Dispute Resolution procedures under the Final Settlement Stipulation,
which involve arbitration.

A variant of the satellite well field concept is to amend the GWC rules and regulations to
allow new Compact Compliance Wells with the consent of well owners within three
miles of the new wells. A large landowner has indicated a willingness to consider
drilling such wells and diverting up to 12,000 acre-feet per year from such wells;
however, the landowner expressed concern about the impact of such wells on existing
wells and would want to be compensated for the impact on those existing wells. Again,
it was unknown whether the RRCA would approve such a plan. In addition, the impacts
of the withdrawals would eventually have to be offset by retiring irrigated acreage.

Thus, this was viewed as a short-term solution rather than a permanent solution.

3.6. Preferred Alternative

Alternative 2 (purchasing existing rights to designated ground water and transferring the
historical consumptive use of those rights to the Compact Compliance Pipeline) was
selected as the preferred alternative for the Compact Compliance Pipeline because it is
the most likely to obtain approval of the RRCA in a timeframe that would avoid
curtailment of existing water rights and wells under the State Engineer’s proposed
Compact Rules.

The preferred alternative is to purchase existing ground water rights located north of the
North Fork of the Republican River and to change the use of those rights so they can be
delivered to the North Fork of the Republican River in the Compact Compliance Pipeline
to a location a short distance upstream from the streamflow gage at the Colorado-
Nebraska state line. This alternative has a higher initial cost to acquire existing rights to
designated ground water, but is a long-term solution for compact compliance and has
several advantages. First, it does not require amendment of GWC rules and
regulations, and the procedures for changing the use of existing rights to designated
ground water based on historical consumptive use are established in the current GWC



rules. Second, the new wells to be constructed for the Compact Compliance Pipeline
would cause no new net depletions because pumping would be limited to the historical
consumptive use of the existing rights. Third, RRCA approval of this alternative is
considered likely, which means that construction could likely begin in late 2008, with the
potential for delivery of water in mid-2009, which could prevent curtailment under the
State Engineer’s proposed Compact Rules. Fourth, this alternative would not place a
new water demand on the Ogallala Aquifer, and wells in this area are located in one of
the deepest parts of the aquifer in Colorado, thereby assuring a long-term water supply
for the Compact Compliance Pipeline and not requiring future actions to offset new
withdrawals from the aquifer.

4.0 ENGINEERING ANALYSIS FOR THE PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE

Approximately 11,000 acre-feet of water per year is needed at this time to comply with
Colorado’s compact obligation. Over the longer term, it is estimated that approximately
15,000 acre-feet of water per year will be needed. The Compact Compliance Pipeline
will be sized to allow gravity delivery of water to meet the future requirements. The
initial capacity will be 15,000 acre-feet per year, provided over a nine-month period, with
the capability to expand the delivery rate by adding a pumping facility.

4.1. Source of Water for the Compact Compliance Pipeline

The preferred alternative is for the RRWCD WAE to acquire rights to designated ground
water that are currently used to irrigate approximately 10,000 acres of land using
center-pivot sprinklers within the property boundary shown on Figure 1. The historical
consumptive use on these lands has been estimated to be approximately 15,000 acre-
feet per year. These ground water rights will be transferred to six (or possibly eight)
new well locations (Figure 2). New high-capacity wells will be constructed to pump the
transferred consumptive use to supply the Compact Compliance Pipeline.

4.2. Hydrologic Evaluation

The quantity of water available from existing rights to designated ground water will be
based on the historical consumptive use of water produced from the wells during the
past 10 years, which is estimated to be 15 to 20 inches per year. The historical
consumptive use will vary from well to well, depending on pumping rates and crops that
were grown. The historical consumptive use will be determined for rights to designated
ground water acquired by the RRWCD WAE for the Compact Compliance Pipeline
using methods that have been accepted by the GWC.

4.3. Water Quality

Ground water underlying the lands being considered as a potential source of supply for
the Compact Compliance Pipeline is considered to be of good quality and generally
equal to or better than the surface water in the North Fork of the Republican River at the
state line. The water source is designated as the Ogallala Formation - North. Stream
classifications and water quality standards for the North Fork of the Republican River,
as published by the Colorado Water Quality Control Commission, are identified in the



left column below and ground water quality properties are shown in the right column, for
comparison. (Note that the reference source used to generate the table did not indicate
ground water quality for all of the surface water standard categories; therefore, there are
some blanks in the table).

Table 1: Comparison of stream water quality in the North Fork to the ground water quality in the

Ogallala Formation.

Surface Water Classification and Associated In-
Stream or Drinking Water Standards ©

Reported Ground Water Quality

Properties in Ogal(lz?lg)Formation - North

Classifications:

Aquatic Life -- Cold Water 1 N/A
Recreation -- 1a N/A
Water Supply -- Agriculture N/A

Physical and Biological Standards:

Dissolved Oxygen = 6.0 mg/I

0.2 to 8.6 mg/l; 50% > 5.4 mg/|

pH = 6.5-9.0

7.0-79

Fecal coliforms = 200/100 ml

E Coli = 126/100 ml

Inorganic Standards:

Ammonia (acute) = Table Value Standard (TVS)

Ammonia (chronic) = 0.02 mg/I

0.01 to 0.244 mg/l; 50% < 0.015 mg/Il

Chlorine (acute) = 0.019 mg/I

Chlorine (chronic) = 0.011 mg/l

Cyanide = 0.005 mg/l

Sulfide = 0.002 mg/l

Boron = 0.75 mg/l

Dissolved boron: 20 — 130 pg/|

Nitrate NO, = 0.05 mg/l

<0.01 mgl/l

Nitrate NOz; =10 mg/I

1.1to 8.9 mg/l

Chloride = 250 mg/I

1.4 t0 29.5 mg/l

Sulfate = 250 mg/l

5.51t0 95.7 mg/l

Total Dissolved Solids = 500 mg/l

219 to 461 mg/l

Metal Standards:

Arsenic (acute) = 50 pg/l (total recoverable)

Dissolved arsenic: <5-12 ug/l

Cadmium (acute) = TVS (trout)

Cadmium (chronic) = TVS

Trivalent Chromium (acute) = 50 pg/l (total)

Hexavalent Chromium (acute/chronic) = TVS

Copper (acute/chronic) = 1.3 mg/l

Dissolved copper: <5-35 ug/l

Iron (chronic) = 300 pg/|

Dissolved iron: <3-60 pg/l

Iron (chronic) =1000 ug/l (total recoverable)

Lead (acute/chronic) = TVS (dissolved 15ug/l)

Dissolved lead <5 pg/l

Manganese (acute/chronic) = TVS (dissolved 50ug/l)

Dissolved manganese <3-40 g/l

Manganese (chronic) = WS (dissolved)




Reported Ground Water Quality

Surface Water Classification and Associated In- Properties in Ogal(lz?lg)Formation - North

Stream or Drinking Water Standards ©

Mercury (chronic) = 0.01 ug/I (total)
Nickel (acute/chronic) = TVS

Selenium(acute/chronic) = TVS (dissolved 50 ug/l) Dissolved selenium: <5 ug/l
Silver (acute) = TVS
Zinc (acute/chronic) = TVS Dissolved Zinc < 5-124 pg/|

Notes:

1. Stream classifications and water quality standards obtained from a report by David Litke, U.S. Geological Survey, and
Historical Water-Quality Data for the High Plains Regional Ground-Water Study Area (1930 — 1998) or from
CDPHE/WQCC - Colorado Primary Drinking Water Standards.

2. Blanks indicate data that were not reported in the reference.

3. Reported ground water quality data is from Litke, USGS (see Note 1).

Volatile organic compounds and pesticides in the ground water in the project area are
below concentrations in Colorado’s drinking water standards based on the references
cited in the footnotes to the above table. Thus, the water quality of ground water being
considered for the Compact Compliance Pipeline is appropriate for delivery to the North
Fork of the Republican River to offset stream depletions.

4.4. Qutlet Structure

The Compact Compliance Pipeline will deliver water to the North Fork of the Republican
River as needed to meet Colorado’s compact obligations.

Several locations for discharging water to the North Fork were considered. A discharge
location in the Town of Wray would provide some aesthetic benefits to the town;
however, stream channel losses and the presence of surface diversions between Wray
and the state line would reduce the delivery credit for water for compact compliance.
Therefore, it was decided that the point of discharge to the North Fork should be as
close as possible to the state line and at a location that does not require crossing of the
railroad and highway rights-of-way. The discharge location is shown on Figure 2.
Because water delivered to the North Fork will be measured a short distance upstream
from the stream gage on the North Fork near the state line, this alternative provides the
most certainty that the RRCA will give full credit for water delivered by the Compact
Compliance Pipeline.

Several types of discharge structures could be used; however, the most cost-effective
discharge structure would be a USBR-type reinforced concrete impact basin, sized for
the expected peak water delivery rate. This structure will effectively dissipate energy
over a wide range of flows and allow for gravity operation of the main pipeline.

4.5. Pipeline Alignment
There are several potential alignments for the main north-to-south pipeline, depending

on topographic, land use, land ownership, and access considerations. The final pipeline

10



alignment will be determined when negotiations for the acquisition of rights to
designated ground water have been completed.

Two alignments for the north-to-south pipeline were developed to estimate costs, one
that followed existing county roads wherever possible and one that was deemed best
from the standpoint of gravity delivery. Local interests also identified an alignment that
was viewed to be optimal from the perspective of land owner negotiation efforts. The
north-to-south alignment for the preferred alternative shown on Figure 2 was selected
as the basis for estimating costs.

A summary of the major facilities associated with the preferred alternative is provided
below and the locations of facilities are shown on Figure 1.

Table 2: Summary of Major Facilities for the Preferred Alternative.

Preferred Alternative

North Well Field

6 new 2000 gpm wells

7920 feet of 18" pipe

5280 feet of 24" pipe

Conveyance Pipeline

67,060 feet of 36” pipe

Storage Tank — 1 MG

River Outlet Structure

The preferred alternative for the Compact Compliance Pipeline is shown schematically
in plan and profile on Figure 2. Approximately 10,000 acres of land irrigated by rights to
designated ground water will be retired and the historical consumptive use, estimated to
be 15,000 acre-feet per year, will be transferred from existing wells to six or eight new
wells. The proposed location of these new wells is shown on Figure 2. With a pumping
capacity of 2,000 gpm per well, six new wells will be able to deliver 15,000 acre-feet in a
nine-month period. The current schedule envisions completion of the wells and the
pipeline in early July 2009, with the potential to deliver a major portion of Colorado’s
estimated 2009 compact obligation (11,000 acre-feet) before year-end 2009.

Water pumped from the individual wells will be collected in an interconnected system of
pipelines and then conveyed to a storage tank located at elevation 3655. The storage
tank will provide reserve capacity allowing the main pipeline to operate for 2 hours at
two-thirds capacity with no inflow to the tank from the well field. The storage tank will
also provide protection of the main pipeline from surge and negative pressures that
could develop if the main pipeline were connected directly to the well field collection
system.
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The main pipeline will extend from a storage tank approximately 12.7 miles to the North
Fork of the Republican River. The pipe will be buried throughout its length. The
pipeline will be supplied from the tank through a gated outlet, which will regulate flows.
The main pipeline will flow by gravity from the tank to the river discharge structure.

4.6. Preliminary Design

Key parameters and associated criteria for the preliminary design are provided in Table
3 below.

Table 3: Key parameters and associated criteria for the preliminary design.
Parameters Selected Design Criteria
System Delivery Capacity
Year 1 11,000 AF in 6 months
Year 2 15,000 AF in 9 months
Ultimate Perhaps up to 25,000 AF in 9 months
Year 1 30.4 cfs
Year 2 27.6 cfs
Ultimate Perhaps up to 46.0 cfs
Pipe Velocity
Initial <5fps
Ultimate <10 fps
Maximum Pipe Pressure 100 psi
Well Capacity 1,000 to 2,000 gpm

4.7. Well Field Development

Six to eight new high-capacity wells will be drilled at locations approved by the GWC.
4.8. Collector Pipelines

A system of pipelines will be constructed to interconnect the wells and to convey water
to the storage tank. A general layout of the pipelines is presented on Figure 2, which
indicates that the pipelines will be 18 to 24 inches in diameter.

4.9. Conveyance Pipeline

The main water conveyance pipeline will be a 36-inch diameter pipeline extending from
a 1.0 MG storage tank approximately 12.7 miles to the North Fork of the Republican
River following the general alignment shown on Figure 2. The tank will operate
between a high water level at elevation 3690 and a low water level at elevation 3665.
Releases from the tank will be regulated by a valve located near the tank, and an ultra-
sonic flow meter will be provided approximately 30 feet downstream of the release
valve.
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The pipeline will be buried with minimum cover of three feet above the crown of the
pipe. To assure integrity, the pipe will be properly bedded prior to filling the trench with
well-compacted backfill. Sources of bedding material include off-site commercial sand
and gravel pits and processing of locally available materials. Decisions on bedding
material sources will be made during final design following geotechnical field
investigations. Access manholes, air release valves, and drain valves will be provided
at appropriate locations along the pipeline, as determined during the final design and
confirmed during construction.

Pipe materials suitable for the project include polyvinyl chloride (PVC, C-900 and C-
905), steel, ductile iron, asbestos cement, and reinforced concrete pressure pipe. The
most likely type of pipe for the main conveyance alignment is PVC or steel. Further
review of pipe materials and prices will be made during final design.

As discussed above, the pipeline will terminate at a river outlet structure. Upstream of
that structure, there will be a control valve to maintain appropriate velocities in the
pipeline. This valve will be locate just upstream of the outlet structure. An ultra-sonic
flow meter will be provided approximately 30 feet upstream of the downstream control
valve.

4.10. Special Crossings

Depending on findings during the design-level field reconnaissance, various types of
special crossings may be needed to route the pipeline over or under existing utilities,
under stream channels and wetlands, and under roads. No major stream, road, or
railroad crossings have been identified, and special crossings are expected to be
relatively few in number. Utility crossings may require special excavation methods and
encasement of sections of the Compact Compliance Pipeline. If perennial streams or
wetlands must be crossed, directional borings and casing conduits may be used.

4.11. River Outlet Structure

The outlet from the pipeline to the North Fork will be a conventional USBR-type impact
basin constructed of reinforced concrete. Dimensions of the structure will be
approximately 11 feet (W) by 14 feet (L) by 7 feet (H). The structure will be set back,
and grading around the structure will be performed to minimize visual impacts. With
discharge normally in the range of 20 to 30 cfs, the basin will discharge flow about equal
to and sometimes greater than the normal flow of the river. To avoid issues with
channel erosion, the basin discharge will be angled at approximately 30 degrees (or
less) to the river channel.

The impact basin will be set back from the river at a location outside of the estimated
100-year flood plain, probably about 50 to 100 feet from the existing river bank. A
channel will be excavated from the basin to the river. This channel could be engineered
to replicate the natural North Fork channel, thereby providing an eventual net gain in
riparian habitat to offset the effects of excavation of the new channel into the existing
river bank.
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4.12. Ancillary Facilities

The Compact Compliance Pipeline will require a number of ancillary facilities for proper
operation and long-term maintenance. These include:

e Flow meters at each well, at key locations on the various pipelines, and near
the river outlet.

e Valves to control flows in the system, provide isolation for inspection, and to
allow draining the pipe at low points.

e Pipeline protection devices, including air release and vacuum valves and
blow-off valves.

e Manholes and blind flanges to allow access for internal pipe inspection.
e A system control building and maintenance yard.
5.0 COST ESTIMATES

Estimates of probable construction costs have been developed for the preferred
alternative. All costs include allowances for prime contractor overhead and profit.
Estimated unit prices and costs for the listed major work items were derived from the
following sources: published and non-published bid price data for similar work; R.S.
Means Heavy Construction Cost data for 2006 and 2007; contacts with pipe suppliers
and information from the project area; experience on similar construction projects; and
price quotes from local and regional suppliers and contractors.

The estimated construction costs include an allowance for “unlisted items” equal to 10
percent of the listed items. This allowance is intended to cover costs for a variety of
items, which will eventually be included in a final bid schedule, but which are not
considered major construction items at this time. This allowance will decrease to zero
as project development progresses towards final design and construction bidding.

The sum of the listed items plus the unlisted items allowance is defined as the “Base
Construction Subtotal” (BCS). An allowance for the construction contractor’s costs for
mobilization, bonds, and insurance is included as a percentage of the BCS. An
allowance equal to 4 percent of the BCS has been assigned to these costs.
The cost estimates also include an allowance for construction contingencies:

e Unforeseen conditions at the site or unexpected project development issues.

e Approximations in estimating.

¢ Integration of new and/or more detailed project information or more detailed or
rigorous evaluations.
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e Other unforeseen or unexpected costs.

The total allowance for construction contingencies used in the feasibility cost estimates
is 10 percent of the BCS plus mobilization, bonds, and insurance. The sum of the BCS,
mobilization, bonds, and insurance, and construction contingencies is defined as the
“Direct Construction Subtotal” (DCS).

A “Total Estimated Project Cost,” which is equal to the DCS plus allowances for design
engineering (5 percent), permitting (2 percent), owner legal and administrative costs (2
percent), and construction administration and engineering (5 percent), is provided for
the preferred alternative. These costs include allowances for purchase of land or
acquisition of easements required for project development or significant environmental
mitigation.

The estimated project costs presented in this Loan Feasibility Study are based on
professional opinion of the cost to develop and construct the project as described in this
Study. The estimated costs are based on the sources of information described above,
and knowledge of current construction cost conditions in the locality of the project.
Actual project construction and development costs are affected by a number of factors
beyond the control of the RRWCD WAE and its engineering consultants, such as supply
and demand for the types of construction required at the time of bidding and in the
project vicinity; changes in material supplier costs; changes in labor rates; the
competitiveness of contractors and suppliers; changes in applicable regulatory
requirements; changes in design standards; and environmental mitigation requirements
and other conditions of project permitting. Therefore, conditions and factors that arise as
project development proceeds through construction may result in project costs that
differ from the estimates documented in this Loan Feasibility Study.

Table 4 contains summaries of the cost estimates developed for the preferred
alternative for the Compact Compliance Pipeline.
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Table 4: Cost Estimate for the Preferred Alternative
Alternative 1
REPUBLICAN RIVER COMPACT COMPLIANCE PIPELINE
OPINION OF PROBABLE PROJECT COST
{Excluding Acquisition of Water Rights)
Delivery Rate = 15,000 AF/yr; 9-month Delivery Period
Item Description Quantity | Unit Unit Amount
No. Price

1 |Rights-of-way and easements 180 Ac $500 $90,000

2  |Wells, pumps and motors 6 Ea $150,000 $900,000

3 1 MG storage tank 1 Ea $500,000 $500,000

4 |Furnish and Install 36-in pipe "’ 67,060 | Ft $160| $10,730,000

5 |Furnish and Install 24-in pipe "’ 5280 | Ft $82 $433,000

6 |Furnish and Install 18-in pipe " 7920 | Rt $62 $491,000

7 |Valves and appurtenances 1 LS $608,000 $608,000

8 Road and utility crossings 4 Ea $15,000 $60,000

9 |[Drainage crossings 4 Ea 525,000 $100,000

10 |Reclamation of disturbed areas 180 Ac 51,000 $180,000
11 |[Outfall structure 1 LS $150,000 $150,000
12 |New access roads 15 Mi $25,000 $380,000
13 |Control building and yard 1 LS $200,000 $200,000
14 |Land for control building and yard 5 Ac $8,000 $40,000
15 |Montoring and SCADA system 1 LS $100,000 $100,000
--- |Unlisted Items (10% of subtotal of listed items) $1,496,000
Base Construction Subtotal (BCS) $16,458,000
Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance (4.0% of BCS) 660,000
Contingencies (10% of BCS + Mobilization ...) $1,710,000

Direct Construction Subtotal (DCS) $18,828,000
Design Engineering (5% of DCS) $940,000
Permitting (2% of DCS) $190,000

Legal and Administrative Costs (2% Of DCS) $380,000
Construction Administration and Engineering (5% of DCS) $940,000

TOTAL ESTIMATED PROJECT COST $21,278,000

) Includes trench excavation, pipe installation, bedding, and backfill
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6.0 PERMITTING AND APPROVAL BY RRCA

The change of rights to designated ground water must be approved pursuant to Rule 7
of the GWC Rules and Regulations. Rule 7.2 requires publication of an application for a
change of rights to designated ground water. A change in the type of use or an export
out of a designated basin cannot result in an increase over the historical depletion of the
aquifer by the well. An export of water from a well located within a ground water
management district (GMD) requires approval by the GMD. As long as the change is
limited to the historical use of the right and the water is used for the Compact
Compliance Pipeline, approval by the GWC and the applicable GMDs is considered
likely. Because of the importance of the Compact Compliance Pipeline, expedited
consideration is expected.

The Final Settlement Stipulation requires submission to the RRCA of an augmentation

plan and related accounting procedures for wells acquired for the purpose of offsetting

stream depletions. The augmentation plan and related accounting procedures must be
approved by the RRCA prior to implementation. It is expected that the Colorado State

Engineer’s Office will submit an augmentation plan and related accounting procedures

to the RRCA as soon as a specific plan has been developed.

A full assessment of all permitting issues is beyond the scope this Study, but based on
review of requirements under the Corps of Engineers’ Nationwide 404 Permit (NWP)
process, it is expected that construction of the river outlet structure will require a
Nationwide 404 (dredge/fill) Permit (NWP No. 7). Any disturbance of wetlands along
the pipeline route would also require a 404 permit (NWP No. 12). Recent pipeline
planning and design by Aurora Water has been based on avoidance of wetlands and
riparian zones by tunneling rather than trenching for pipeline installation, which may be
a possibility in this case to expedite construction.

Assuming that a Nationwide 404 Permit will be the framework for the permitting
process, the following activities are also expected to be required, as conditions for
obtaining the Corps’ permit:

e State of Colorado 401 Water Quality Certification;

e Compliance with requirements of the National Pollution Discharge
Elimination System (NPDES Permit);

e Threatened and Endangered Species clearance through the U. S. Fish and
Wildlife Service and the Colorado Division of Wildlife;

e Cultural and historic resources assessment;
e Yuma County 1041 Permit; and

e Various construction-related permits that the pipeline construction
contractor will be required to obtain.
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The Corps provides guidance on what is required in the Nationwide 404 Permit
application. Local Corps’ representatives in the Denver Regulatory Office have
indicated that the 404 Permits (NWP Nos. 7 and 12) could be obtained in about 30
days, perhaps less, once the documentation is provided.

7.0 IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE

Key milestone dates in the preliminary project schedule for the Compact Compliance
Pipeline are indicated in Table 5 below.

Table 5: Key dates in the Project Schedule.

Milestone Date

Begin Final Design 01/07/08
Complete 50% Design 04/25/08
Complete 90% Design 07/11/08
Finalize Contract Documents 08/15/08
Issue Bid Documents 08/18/08
Receive Bids 10/17/08
Award Construction Contract 10/20/08
Complete Construction 06/26/09
Begin Full Water Delivery 07/14/09

Achieving this schedule will enable full delivery of water for compact compliance to
begin in the latter part of June 2009. The project should be able to deliver close to
11,000 acre-feet of water in 6 to 7 months, allowing Colorado to be within its compact
allocation for 2009 by year-end 2009.

8.0 INSTITUTIONAL CONSIDERATIONS

Commissioners for the States of Colorado, Kansas, and Nebraska signed the
Republican River Compact on December 31, 1942. The Compact became effective
when it was approved by the legislature of each state and consented to by the
Congress of the United States in 1943, thereby becoming a law of the United States.
The Compact apportioned beneficial consumptive use in each state derived from the
computed average annual virgin water supply originating in designed drainage
subbasins, subject to increase or decrease if the computed virgin water supply of any
source varied more than ten percent from the virgin water supply.

In the late 1990s, the State of Kansas filed a motion for leave to file a complaint against
the State of Nebraska with the United States Supreme Court, alleging that Nebraska
had violated the Compact by exceeding the beneficial consumptive use allocated to
Nebraska under the Compact, primarily by ground water pumping and consumptive use.
The U.S. Supreme Court granted the motion. Nebraska filed an answer and a cross-
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claim against Colorado, alleging that Colorado had also violated the Compact by
exceeding its consumptive use.

Colorado and Nebraska argued that ground water was not apportioned by the Compact
or, if it was considered, only ground water in the alluvium of stream channels was
subject to the compact apportionment. The Special Master in Kansas v. Nebraska and
Colorado ruled that depletions to surface streams due to ground water pumping in the
basin, including ground water pumping from the Ogallala Aquifer, was part of the
consumptive use allocated by the Compact.

On December 15, 2002, the States of Kansas, Nebraska, and Colorado entered into a
Final Settlement Stipulation that provided for dismissal of the lawsuit and waived all
claims for damages through December 15, 2002. In the Final Settlement Stipulation,
Colorado and Kansas agreed to no new relaxation of their existing laws and regulations
on well construction and agreed that in compact accounting, sub-basin allocations may
be added together, to a certain extent, and that accounting will be done on a five-year
running average. Other aspects of the Final Settlement Stipulation are discussed in the
Introduction, and Sections 3.2 and 3.4. Approvals by the Colorado Ground Water
Commission, local ground water management districts, and the RRCA to implement the
Compact Compliance Pipeline are required (see Section 6.0), but are considered likely
for the preferred alternative.

9.0 SOCIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS OF THE PROJECT

The Compact Compliance Pipeline will assist the State of Colorado to comply with the
Compact and remove the threat that water rights in the basin will be curtailed under
proposed Compact Rules or an action to enforce the Compact by Kansas or Nebraska.
According to Colorado Agricultural Statistics (2007), the four county region (Yuma,
Phillips, Kit Carson, and Logan counties) produced 82,815,000 bushels of corn for grain
in 2006, which was 65% of the statewide corn for grain production. Yuma County is the
largest corn-producing county in the state, with production in 2006 of 46,500,000
bushels, or almost 37% of the statewide total. In some years, Yuma County produces
more corn than any other county in the country, including counties in the corn-belt
states of lowa and Nebraska.

The purchase of existing rights to designated ground water and the use of those rights
for the Compact Compliance Pipeline would have no impact on the regional aquifer,
since pumping would be limited to the historical consumptive use of the existing rights.
The conversion of 10,000 acres of irrigated land to nonirrigated rangeland would reduce
tax revenues of Yuma County; however, the retirement of 10,000 irrigated acres for the
Compact Compliance Pipeline would prevent the curtailment of even greater irrigated
acreage in Yuma County in the proposed Curtailment Zone under the proposed
Compact Rules and would prevent the curtailment of all well pumping in the basin if
Colorado continues to exceed its compact allocations. In addition, there is a possibility
that irrigated land retired for the Compact Compliance Pipeline could be enrolled in
CREP. If that occurs, the land would continue to be taxed as irrigated land during the
15-year term of the CREP contracts.
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Construction of new wells and the pipeline would disturb some land during construction;
however, the engineering plans will provide for revegetation along the pipeline right-of-
way. Thus, long-term impacts from pipeline construction would be minimal, if any. The
Compact Compliance Pipeline will discharge water into the North Fork a short distance
upstream from the Colorado-Nebraska state line and will enhance streamflow in the
reach of the river downstream from the outfall structure. The river channel is adequate
to carry additional water and the additional streamflow would benefit riparian habitat
along the river.

10.0 FINANCIAL FEASIBILITY ANALYSIS

The total cost of the preferred alternative is expected to be $61 to 71 million, depending
on the cost to acquire rights to designated ground water. The RRWCD WAE is seeking
a loan from the Colorado Water Conservation Board Construction Fund for a minimum
of $60 million to finance the project. The RRWCD WAE will finance the remaining
amount through private loans or through a future request for a loan from the CWCB
Construction Fund. The RRWCD WAE will repay the loans through an increase in use
fees and possibly a mill levy on property within the district.

10.1. Financial Repayment

The RRWCD WAE is applying for a minimum loan amount of $60 million from the
Colorado Water Conservation Board Construction Fund with a 30-year repayment
period and an interest rate of not more than 2.25%. Because the Compact Compliance
Pipeline will prevent the State of Colorado from paying future damages for stream
depletions from well pumping that occurred decades prior to the Final Settlement
Stipulation, the RRWCD WAE will seek additional financial assistance from the State of
Colorado, either in the form of a direct grant for the project, a reduced interest rate, or a
combination of all three. However, the financial feasibility analysis for this Study is
based on a $60 million loan from the CWCB Construction Fund with a 30-year
repayment period at an interest rate of 2.25%, with the remainder of the funding coming
from cash reserves and private loans.

Based on its current financial statement, the RRWCD WAE has cash reserves of
$2,547,594 in excess of commitments available for the project. To pay for the project
the RRWCD Board of Directors will raise use fees for 2008 by approximately $8.41 to
$9.86 per assessed irrigated acre (currently 500,500 acres). See Table 6 below. (Use
fees currently generate revenues in excess of financial obligations so the projected use
fee increases likely overstate the amount necessary to repay loans.)
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Table 6 - Annual Payment for Compact Compliance Pipeline

Water Right Acquistion Cost of $40,000,000 Water Right Acquistion Cost of $50,000,000
2nd 2nd

CWCB Loan Loan/Cash Total CWCB Loan Loan/Cash Total
Amount to be Financed $50,000,000 $11,278,000 | $61,278,000 $60,000,000 | $11,278,000 | $71,278,000
Length of Loan (Years) 30 30 30 30
Interest Rate 2.25% 6.00% 2.25% 6.00%
Annual Loan Payment $2,309,000 $819,000 $3,128,000 $2,771,000 $819,000 $3,590,000
Estimated O&M Cost $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000
Total Annual Cost $3,309,000 $819,000 $4,128,000 $3,771,000 $819,000 $4,590,000
Cost per acre (500,500
acres) $6.61 $1.60 $8.25 $7.53 $1.60 $9.13

The exact amount of the use fee increase necessary will depend upon the interest rate
and the terms of the CWCB and private loans and the costs to acquire existing rights to
designated ground water. Because curtailment under the proposed Compact Rules
would affect existing mortgage loans, Farm Credit of Southern Colorado has indicated a
willingness to loan additional money to the RRWCD WAE for the project. Electric
cooperatives in the region, which would suffer decreases in revenues from curtailment
of well pumping, have also indicated a willingness to loan additional money to the
RRWCD WAE for the project. Farm Credit and electric cooperatives have not
committed to an interest rate for such loans, but have indicated that they would consider
a favorable rate because of the importance of the project to the region. This financial
feasibility analysis assumes that the remainder can be obtained at an interest rate of 6%
with a 30-year repayment period. Banks within the region have indicated that use fees
required to repay loans would be well within the ability of irrigators to pay.

An analysis of future ground water levels indicates that some irrigated land
(approximately 10 percent) will go out of production over the 30-year repayment period
of the CWCB loan; however, the vast majority of the irrigated land in the basin is
expected to remain in production over the next 30 years; thus, the additional increase in
use fees necessary to service loans for the Compact Compliance Pipeline over the 30-
year repayment period would be modest and is well within the ability of irrigators to pay.
In addition, the RRWCD is considering a mill levy on property within the District to
finance a portion of the Compact Compliance Pipeline, since the entire community
within the RRWCD would benefit by removing the threat to the economy from
curtailment. However, because a mill levy would require an election, this source has
not been considered in the financial feasibility analysis.

10.2. Credit Worthiness

Audit reports of financial statements for 2005 and 2006 and a financial report as of
September 30, 2007 are attached.
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The current schedule of use fees is $5.50 per assessed irrigated acre on diversions of
ground water for irrigation use by post-compact wells within the RRWCD and $4.40 per
acre-foot on post-compact diversions of ground water for municipal and commercial
use.

11.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

1. The Compact Compliance Pipeline is critical if Colorado is to comply with
the Republican River Compact and is critical to maintain the viability of
irrigated agriculture in the Republican River Basin.

2. The Compact Compliance Pipeline project is feasible from both
engineering and financial perspectives.

3. The RRWCD Board of Directors will have to increase use fees by
approximately $8.25-$9.13 per assessed irrigated acre to pay for the
project.
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ATTACHMENT A



ARTICLE 50
REPUBLICAN RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

37-50-101. Legislative declaration.

Statute text

The conservation of the water of the Republican river, its tributaries, and that portion of the
Ogallala aquifer underlying the district for compliance with the Republican river compact are of
vital importance to the growth and development of the entire area and the welfare of all its
inhabitants. To promote the health and general welfare of this state, an appropriate agency should
be established for the conservation, use, and development of the water resources of the
Republican river, its tributaries, and that portion of the Ogallala aquifer underlying the district to
cooperate with and assist this state to carry out the state's duty to comply with the limitations and
duties imposed upon the state by the Republican river compact and given such powers as may be
necessary to safeguard for Colorado all waters to which the state is equitably entitled.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1905, § 1, effective August 4.

37-50-102. Definitions.
Statute text
As used in this article, unless the context otherwise requires:

(1) "Board" means the board of directors of the Republican river water conservation district
created pursuant to section 37-50-104.

(2) "District" means the Republican river water conservation district created pursuant to this
article.

(3) "Person" means a person, firm, partnership, association, or corporation.

(4) "Property”, as used in sections 37-50-109 and 37-50-111, includes both real and personal
property. In other parts of this article relating to special assessments, unless otherwise specified,
"property" means real estate as defined in section 2-4-401 (5), C.R.S., and includes all railroads;
tram roads; electric railroads; state and interurban railroads; highways; telephone, telegraph, and
transmission lines; water systems, water rights, pipelines, and rights-of-way of public service
corporations; and all other real property, whether held for public or private use.

(5) "Republican river basin" means that area shown upon the map titled: "Boundaries of the
Republican River Basin and Republican River Water Conservation District". The map shall be
kept on file in the office of the state engineer, the Colorado ground water commission, and the
district and shall be available for public inspection.

(6) "Republican river compact" means the compact entered into between the states of Colorado,
Kansas, and Nebraska and approved by the United States congress as codified in article 67 of
this title and as further defined by the final settlement stipulation dated December 15, 2002, and
filed in Kansas v. Colorado and Nebraska, No. 126 Original.



History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1905, § 1, effective August 4.

37-50-103. Creation and name of district.

Statute text

(1) There is hereby created a water conservation district to be known and designated as the
"Republican river water conservation district”. The district is hereby declared to be a body
corporate under the laws of Colorado. The district shall comprise the following area and territory
of the state of Colorado: Phillips and Yuma counties and those portions of Kit Carson, Lincoln,
Logan, Sedgwick, and Washington counties within the Republican river basin.

(2) The creation of the Republican river water conservation district shall not affect the existence
or powers of public irrigation districts created pursuant to articles 41 to 43 of this title or ground
water management districts created pursuant to article 90 of this title before August 4, 2004.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1906, § 1, effective August 4.

37-50-104. Board of directors.

Statute text

(1) The district shall be managed and controlled by a board of fifteen directors. The members of
the board shall hold their offices for terms of three years and until their successors are appointed
and qualified. A director may serve one or more terms. The boards of county commissioners of
the counties of Yuma, Phillips, Kit Carson, Washington, Sedgwick, Lincoln, and Logan shall
each appoint one director, who shall be a resident of the respective county. One member of the
board shall be appointed by each of the boards of the Marks Butte, Frenchman, W-Y, Sand Hills,
Central Yuma, Arikaree, and Plains ground water management districts. One member of the
board shall be appointed by the Colorado ground water commission and shall be a member of the
Colorado ground water commission. Each director shall be, at the time of the director's
appointment, a resident and owner of real property within the county or ground water
management district from which he or she is appointed or, if only a part of the county or ground
water management district is included within the boundaries of the district, a resident and owner
of real property within such included part. The director appointed by the Colorado ground water
commission shall, at the time of appointment, reside within the district. Each director shall be
appointed by either the board of county commissioners of the county in which the director
resides or by the ground water management district in which the director resides. The director
may be a member of the board of county commissioners of such county or the board of directors
of such ground water management district. Such appointments shall be made at the first meeting
of the board of county commissioners, ground water management district, or Colorado ground
water commission after the establishment of the district. The members of the board shall
annually select one of their number to act as president and one of their number to act as vice-
president, each to hold office for one year or until a successor is duly selected.

(2) The office of a director shall become vacant when the director ceases to reside in the county
or ground water management district from which he or she was appointed, or in the case of the
director appointed by the Colorado ground water commission when the director ceases to reside



in the district or is no longer a member of the Colorado ground water commission, or when
declared vacant by a majority vote of all of the members of the board when a director has failed
to attend two consecutive regular meetings without having been excused from attendance by the
president. If a vacancy occurs in the office by reason of death, resignation, removal, or
otherwise, it shall be filled for the remainder of the unexpired term by the board of county
commissioners of the county, or the ground water management district from which the director
was originally appointed. Before entering upon the discharge of his or her duties, each director
shall take an oath to support and defend the constitutions of the United States and of this state
and to impartially, without fear or favor, discharge the duties of a director of the district.

(3) (a) Upon creation of the district, the directors shall be appointed by the respective boards of
county commissioners or ground water management districts as provided in this section for the
following terms of office:

(I) The directors from the counties of Phillips and Kit Carson and from the Marks Butte and
Arikaree ground water management districts, whose terms of office shall expire on the date of
the regular quarterly meeting of the board to be held in October 2005, or as soon thereafter as
their respective successors are appointed and qualified;

(I) The directors from the counties of Washington, Sedgwick, and Lincoln and from the W-Y,
Central Yuma, and Plains ground water management districts, whose terms of office shall expire
on the date of the regular quarterly meeting to be held in October 2006, or as soon thereafter as
their respective successors are appointed and qualified; and

(IIT) The directors from the counties of Yuma and Logan, the directors from the Frenchman and
Sand Hills ground water management districts, and the director appointed by the ground water
commission, whose terms of office shall expire on the date of the regular quarterly meeting to be
held in October 2007, or as soon thereafter as their respective successors are appointed and
qualified.

(b) Thereafter, each director shall be appointed for a term of three years, and the term shall
expire on the date of the regular quarterly meeting to be held in October of the year that
commences during the third year of the director's term, or as soon thereafter as a successor is
duly appointed and qualified. For the purpose of determining such expiration date, the term of
the director shall be taken as having begun on the date of the first regular October quarterly
meeting at which the term of a predecessor would have expired had the director then been duly
appointed and qualified.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1906, § 1, effective August 4.

37-50-105. Compensation of directors.

Statute text

The directors of the district shall receive as compensation a sum not to exceed one hundred
dollars per day while actually engaged in the business of the district, and, in addition, the



directors shall be entitled to their actual traveling and transportation expenses when away from
their respective places of residence on district business.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1908, § 1, effective August 4. L. 2007: Entire section
amended, p. 358, § 4, effective April 2.

37-50-106. Employees.

Statute text

The board shall appoint a secretary and a treasurer. The same individual may, at the election of
the board, hold both offices. The board shall likewise hire such other employees, including
engineers and attorneys, as may be required to properly transact the business of the district, and
is authorized to provide for the compensation of the secretary and treasurer and other appointees.
The treasurer shall be required by the board to give bond with a corporate surety in such amount
as the board may fix and that it deems sufficient to protect the funds in the hands of the treasurer
or under the treasurer's control. Such bond is subject to the approval of the board.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1908, § 1, effective August 4.

37-50-107. General powers.

Statute text

(1) The district is formed for the purpose of cooperating with and assisting this state to carry out
its duty to comply with the limitations and duties imposed upon the state by the Republican river

compact, and, in furtherance of that purpose and in its corporate capacity, the district shall have
power to:

(a) Sue and be sued in the name of the Republican river water conservation district and otherwise
to participate in litigation;

(b) Acquire, operate, and hold in the name of the district such real and personal property as may
be necessary to carry out the provisions of this article and sell and convey such property or its

products as provided in this article or when the property is no longer needed for the purposes of
the district;

(c) Borrow money and incur indebtedness and issue bonds or other evidence of such
indebtedness;

(d) Accept gifts, grants, or donations of personal or real property or moneys;

(e) Make surveys and conduct investigations to determine the best manner of utilizing stream
flows within the district and the amount of such stream flow or other water supply, including
ground water; locate ditches, irrigation works, wells, pipelines, and reservoirs to store or utilize
water for compact compliance purposes; make filings upon such water; initiate appropriations for
compact compliance purposes; and do and perform all acts and things necessary or advisable to



protect existing beneficial uses of water within the district through compliance with the
Republican river compact;

(f) Make contracts with respect to the relative rights of the district under its claims and filings

and the rights of any other person seeking to divert water from any of the streams within the
district;

(g) Contract with any agencies, officers, bureaus, and departments of this state and the United
States, including the department of corrections, to obtain services or labor for the initiation or
construction of irrigation works, canals, reservoirs, wells, pipelines, or retaining ponds within the
district;

(h) Enter upon privately owned land or other real property for the purpose of making surveys or
obtaining other information, without obtaining an order to do so, if the same can be done without
damage to the lands, crops, or improvements thereon;

(1) Enter into contracts, agreements, or other arrangements with the United States government or
any department thereof; with persons, railroads, or other entities; with public corporations; with
the state government or a political subdivision of this or other states; with irrigation, drainage,
conservation, conservancy, or other improvement districts in this or other states; with ground
water management districts; or with the ground water commission for cooperation or assistance
in constructing, maintaining, using, and operating the works of the district, for making surveys
and investigations or related reports, or for any other purpose authorized by this article. The
district may purchase, lease, or acquire land or other property in adjoining states in order to
secure outlets or for other purposes of the district and may enter into contracts and spend money
for securing such outlets or other works in adjoining states.

(j) Have and exercise the power of eminent domain to acquire ditches, reservoirs, or other works,
lands, or rights-of-way therefor that the district may need to carry out the plans of the district and
in general to exercise any and all rights and powers of eminent domain conferred upon other
agencies, as provided in articles 1 to 7 of title 38, C.R.S.;

(k) Establish a water enterprise pursuant to article 45.1 of this title;

(1) Make loans or grants to any public entity, nonprofit corporation, not-for-profit corporation,
carrier ditch company, mutual ditch or reservoir company, unincorporated ditch or reservoir
company, or cooperative association within the boundaries of the district to carry out the

purposes of the district;

(m) Impose a use fee on the diversion of water within the district or establish an annual levy for
the use of water;

(n) Establish a nonprofit or charitable land trust;

(o) Purchase, rent, lease, and accept donations of, or cooperate in the creation of, conservation
easements;



(p) Cooperate in the creation of conservation reserve programs and other similar programs;

(q) Exercise such implied powers and perform such other acts as may be necessary to carry out

and effect any of the express powers hereby conferred upon such district as set forth in this
article.

(2) The district, in its own name, may issue revenue bonds to finance, in whole or in part, the
construction of works, reservoirs, wells, pipelines, or other improvements for the beneficial use
of water for the purposes for which it has been or may be appropriated and to further the
purposes of the district, whether or not the interest on such bonds may be subject to taxation.
Such revenue bonds shall be issued in such denominations and with such maximum net effective
interest rate as may be fixed by the board and shall bear interest such that the net effective
interest rate of the bonds does not exceed the maximum net effective interest rate authorized. The
board shall pledge only rental proceeds, service charges, and other income, or any combination
thereof, from such works or other improvements, and the district shall not be otherwise obligated
for the payment thereof. At the time such revenue bonds are issued, the board shall make and
enter in the minutes of the proceeding a resolution in which are set forth the due dates of such
revenue bonds, the rates of interest thereon, the general provisions of the bonds, and a statement
that the same are payable only out of rental proceeds, service charges, and other income, or any
combination thereof. In addition, the board shall require the payment of rental charges, service
charges, or other charges by the political subdivisions or persons who are to use or derive
benefits from the water or other services furnished by such works or improvements. Such
charges shall be sufficient to pay operation and maintenance expenses thereof, to meet the bond
payments, and to accumulate and maintain reserve and replacement accounts pertaining thereto
as set forth in such resolution. Such resolution shall be irrepealable during the time that any of
the revenue bonds are outstanding and unpaid. The revenue bonds shall be signed "Republican
River Water Conservation District, By .................... , president. Attest .................... , secretary",
and they shall be countersigned by the treasurer.

(3) The district is authorized and required to prepare and adopt as the official plan for the district
a comprehensive, detailed plan showing the nature of the improvements or works, including all
canals, reservoirs, ditches, wells, and pipelines, whether within or without the district, and the
estimated cost of each principal part of such system or works.

(4) The board has full authority to devise, prepare for, execute, maintain, and operate all works
or improvements necessary or desirable to complete, maintain, operate, and protect the works
provided for by the official plan, and to that end may employ and secure persons and equipment
under the supervision of the chief engineer or other agents or may enter into contracts for such
works, either as a whole or in parts.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1908, § 1, effective August 4.

37-50-108. Principal office - meetings.
Statute text



The board shall designate a place within the district where the principal office is to be maintained
and may change such place from time to time. Regular quarterly meetings of the board shall be
held at the office on the second Thursday in the months of January, April, July, and October. The
board may hold such special meetings as may be required for the proper transaction of business.
All special meetings of the board shall be held at locations that are within the boundaries of the
district or that are within the boundaries of any county in which the district is located, in whole
or in part, or in any county if the meeting location is within Colorado and does not exceed twenty
miles from the district boundaries. The provisions of this section governing the location of
meetings may be waived only if the proposed change of location of a meeting of the board
appears on the agenda of a regular or special meeting of the board and if a resolution is adopted
by the board stating the reason for which a meeting of the board is to be held in a location other
than under the provisions of this section and further stating the date, time, and place of such
meeting. Special meetings may be called by the president of the board or by any four directors.
Meetings of the board shall be public, and proper minutes of the proceedings of the board shall
be preserved and shall be open to inspection by any elector of the district during business hours.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1911, § 1, effective August 4.

37-50-109. Authority of the board to levy taxes.

Statute text

(1) In addition to other means of providing revenue for the district, the board has the power to fix
the amount of an assessment upon the property within the district, as a level or general levy to be
used for the purpose of paying the expenses of organization, for surveys and plans, to pay the
salary of officers for, the per diem allowed to directors and their expenses, for expenses that may
be incurred in the administration of the affairs of the district, and for all other lawful purposes of
the district including capital construction.

(2) The amount of assessment on each dollar of valuation for assessment shall, in accordance
with the schedule prescribed by section 39-5-128, C.R.S., be certified to boards of county
commissioners of the various counties in which the district is located and by them included in
their next annual levy for state and county purposes. Such amount so certified shall be collected
for the use of such district in the same manner as are taxes for county purposes, and the revenue
laws of the state for the levy and collection of taxes on real estate for county purposes, except as
modified in this article, shall be applicable to the levy and collection of the amount certified by
the board as provided in this section, including the enforcement of penalties, forfeiture, and sale
for delinquent taxes.

(3) All collections made by the county treasurer pursuant to such levy shall be paid to the
treasurer of the district on or before the tenth day of the next succeeding calendar month. Items
of expense that have already been paid in whole or in part from any other sources by the district
may be repaid from receipts of such levy. Such levy may be made regardless of whether the
work proposed, or any part thereof, may have been found impracticable or for other reasons
abandoned. The collection of data and the payment of expenses therefor, including salaries of
engineers, attorneys, and others, to assist this state to carry out its duty to comply with
limitations and duties imposed upon the state by the Republican river compact, is hereby



declared to be a matter of general benefit to the public welfare, such that a tax for such purposes
may be properly imposed.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1911, § 1, effective August 4.

37-50-110. Levy and collection of uniform sales and use tax.

Statute text

(1) (a) In addition to other means of providing revenue for the district, the board, in the name of
the district, has the power to levy and collect a uniform sales and use tax throughout the entire
geographical area of the district, notwithstanding any provision of article 2 of title 29, C.R.S, to
the contrary, and upon the approval of the eligible electors in the district at an election held in
accordance with section 20 of article X of the state constitution and articles 1 to 13 of title 1,
CR.S.

(b) Such uniform sales tax rate shall not exceed one percent upon every transaction or other
incident with respect to which a sales and use tax is levied by the state pursuant to the provisions
of article 26 of title 39, C.R.S.

(c) The sales and use tax imposed pursuant to paragraph (a) of this subsection (1) shall not be
levied on:

(I) The sale of tangible personal property delivered by a retailer, by a retailer's agent, or to a
common carrier for delivery to a destination outside the district; or

(IT) The sale of tangible personal property on which a specific ownership tax has been paid or is
payable when such sale meets the following conditions:

(A) The purchaser does not reside in the district or the purchaser's principal place of business is
outside the district; and

(B) The personal property is registered or required to be registered outside the geographical
boundaries of the district under the laws of this state.

(d) The sales and use tax imposed pursuant to paragraph (a) of this subsection (1) is in addition
to any other sales and use tax imposed pursuant to law and is exempt from the limitation
imposed by section 29-2-108 (1), C.R.S.

(2) (a) The collection, administration, and enforcement of the sales and use tax shall be
performed by the executive director of the department of revenue in the same manner as that for
the collection, administration, and enforcement of the state sales and use tax imposed pursuant to
article 26 of title 39, C.R.S., including, without limitation, the retention by a vendor of the
percentage of the amount remitted to cover the vendor's expense in the collection and remittance
of the sales tax as provided in section 39-26-105, C.R.S. The executive director shall make
monthly distributions of sales tax collections to the district. The district shall pay the net



incremental cost incurred by the department in the administration and collection of the sales and
use tax.

(b) (I) A qualified purchaser may provide a direct payment permit number issued pursuant to
section 39-26-103.5, C.R.S., to any vendor or retailer that is liable and responsible for collecting
and remitting any sales tax levied on any sale made to the qualified purchaser pursuant to the
provisions of this section. A vendor or retailer that has received a direct payment permit number
in good faith from a qualified purchaser shall not be liable or responsible for collection and
remittance of any sales tax imposed on the sale that is paid for directly from the qualified
purchaser's funds and not the personal funds of any individual.

(ID) A qualified purchaser that provides a direct payment permit number to a vendor or retailer
shall be liable and responsible for the amount of sales tax levied on any sale made to the
qualified purchaser pursuant to this section in the same manner as liability would be imposed on
a qualified purchaser for state sales tax pursuant to section 39-26-105 (3), C.R.S.

(¢) (I) The board shall designate a financial officer who shall coordinate with the department of
revenue regarding the collection of a sales and use tax. This coordination shall include, but not
be limited to, the financial officer identifying those businesses eligible to collect the sales and
use tax and any other administrative details identified by the department.

(Il) Any sales and use tax authorized pursuant to this article shall become effective on July 1
following the electors' approval of the tax.

(3) The district shall use the revenues generated from the sales and use tax imposed pursuant to
this article to assure compliance with the Republican river compact.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1912, § 1, effective August 4.

37-50-111. Limitations on power to levy and contract.

Statute text

(1) The district has no power of taxation or right to levy or assess taxes pursuant to section 37-

50-109, except an annual levy. The district has no power to contract or incur any obligation or
indebtedness except as expressly provided in this article.

(2) All property taxes and assessments under this article shall be collected by the county
treasurers of the respective counties in which real estate is situated at the same time and in the
same manner as is provided by law for the collection of taxes for county and state purposes, and,
if the assessments are not paid, the real estate shall be sold at regular tax sales for the payment of
the assessments, interest, and penalties in the manner provided by the laws of this state for
selling property for the payment of general taxes. If there are no bids at the tax sales for the
property so offered, the tax certificates shall be issued in the name of the district; and the board
has the same power with reference to the sale of the tax certificates as is now vested in county
commissioners and county treasurers when a tax certificate is issued in the name of a county.



(3) Tax deeds may be issued, based upon the certificates of sale, in the same manner that deeds
are executed on tax sales on general state and county taxes.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1914, § 1, effective August 4.

37-50-112. Investment of unexpended revenues.

Statute text

The board may invest any unexpended revenues of the district, including any amounts in the
construction fund not needed for immediate use, to pay the cost of construction of any project, or
to pay bonds or coupons or to meet current expenses, in securities meeting the investment
requirements established in part 6 of article 75 of title 24, C.R.S. The board may require any
revenues of the district to be deposited with such depository or bank as may be designated by the
board and likewise has authority to require the treasurer of the district to take from such
depository a bond with corporate surety to ensure payment of any such deposit, or to require
such depository to ensure payment of any such deposit, or to require such depository to pledge
securities of the same kind as those in which the district is authorized to invest its funds to ensure
payment of any such deposit.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1914, § 1, effective August 4.

37-50-113. Appointment and compensation of appraisers.

Statute text

(1) As soon as the official plan has been prepared and adopted pursuant to section 37-50-107 (3)
and is on file in the office of the district, upon petition of the district, the board may, if the
official plan includes the utilization of special improvement bonds paid by special assessments
upon the property benefitted within the district, appoint a board of appraisers consisting of three
members. The qualifications of the appraisers and all proceedings before them shall be in
accordance with the provisions of the law pertaining to the duties and qualifications of appraisers
under the conservancy law of this state as set forth in article 4 of this title.

(2) Appraisers appointed under this section shall receive compensation set by the board for the
performance of their duties.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1914, § 1, effective August 4.

37-50-114. Assessments - procedure in making.

Statute text

(1) If the board provides for the financing of the construction or acquisition of the works or other
improvements proposed and of the other steps necessary to the development and implementation
of the district's official plan by special assessments to be levied against the appraised benefits to
property within the district, then the board may make assessments from time to time, as required,
and, in making the assessments, the board shall be guided by the procedure for the levy of
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similar assessments under the conservancy law of this state, articles 1 to 8 of this title, and
particularly sections 37-5-104 to 37-5-106.

(2) From time to time, as the affairs of the district may demand, the board may levy on all
property upon which benefits have been appraised an assessment of such portion of benefits as
may be found necessary by the board to pay the cost of the appraisal, the preparation and
execution of the official plan for the district, and the superintendence of construction and
administration during the period of construction, plus ten percent of the total to be added for
contingencies, but not to exceed in the total of principal the appraised benefits so adjudicated.
The assessments, to be known as the "construction fund assessment", shall be apportioned to and
levied on each tract of land or other property in the district in proportion to the benefits appraised
and not in excess thereof, and in case bonds are issued, then the amount of interest that will
accrue on such bonds as estimated by the board shall be included in and added to the assessment;
except that the interest to accrue on account of the issuance of bonds shall not be construed as a
part of the cost of construction in determining whether the expenses and cost of making the
improvement are equal to or in excess of the benefits appraised.

(3) As soon as the assessment is levied, the secretary of the district, at the expense thereof, shall
prepare in duplicate an assessment of the district. The assessment shall be in the form of a well-
bound book endorsed and named "Construction Fund Assessment Record of the Republican
River Water Conservation District”. The record shall be in the form of similar records for
conservancy districts under the laws of this state, particularly section 37-5-104. Assessments
may be paid in the manner provided in section 37-5-105 relating to conservancy districts under
the laws of this state. All proceedings provided in such sections with respect to conservancy
districts shall apply to the assessments, the records thereof, and the manner of payment of
assessments of the district.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1915, § 1, effective August 4.

37-50-115. Collection by civil action.

Statute text

In addition to all other remedies for collection of assessments provided by this article, the district
may, at any time after three years after the issuance of any certificate of purchase held by the
district, bring civil action to foreclose the lien for assessments represented by all certificates of
purchase held by the district with respect to the same land and for other relief with respect to
such land as provided by the Colorado rules of civil procedure then in effect for the foreclosure
of liens on real property. No statute of limitations shall be applicable to the rights of the district
arising from any assessment. No decree, or sale of lands thereunder, shall be made except one
subject to the lien of future unpaid installments of assessments. The county treasurer shall be
made a party to any action of the district authorized by this section.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1915, § 1, effective August 4.
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37-50-116. Assessments perpetual lien.

Statute text

All assessments on account of special improvements against appraised benefits and interest
thereon and penalties for default of payment thereof, together with the cost of collecting the
same, from the date of the filing of the construction fund and the assessment record in the office
of the treasurer of the county in which the lands and property are situated, shall constitute a
perpetual lien in an amount not in excess of the benefits severally appraised upon the land and
other property against which assessments have been levied and such benefits appraised. No sale
of the property to enforce any general state, county, city, town, or school tax or other lien shall
extinguish the perpetual lien of the assessment. At any time, a landowner may pay the full
amount of the assessment, and thereafter the property of the landowner shall be clear and free
from lien and shall not be subject to assessment for and on account of benefits appraised against
any other land or default in the payment of assessments made against any other land.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1916, § 1, effective August 4.

37-50-117. Directors to remedy defects in assessments.

Statute text

If any assessment made under the provisions of this article proves invalid, the board, by
subsequent or amended acts or proceedings, promptly and without delay, shall remedy all defects
or irregularities, as the case may require, by making and providing for the collection of new
assessments or otherwise.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1916, § 1, effective August 4.

37-50-118. Assessment record as evidence.

Statute text

The record of assessments contained in the respective assessment records of the district shall be
prima facie evidence in all courts of all matters contained in the record.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1916, § 1, effective August 4.

37-50-119. Defects in notice perfected.

Statute text

Whenever in this article notice is provided for, if the court finds that due notice was not given,
jurisdiction shall not be lost nor the proceedings abated or held void, but the court shall continue
the hearing until proper notice has been given and then shall proceed as though proper notice had
been given in the first instance. If any appraisal, assessment, levy, or other proceeding relating to
the district is held defective, then the board may file a motion in the cause in which the district
was organized to perfect any such defect, and the court shall set a time to hear the motion. If the
original notice as a whole is held to be sufficient, but faulty only with reference to publication as
to certain particular lands or as to service as to certain persons, publication of the defective
notice may be ordered as to the particular lands or service may be made on the persons not
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properly served, and the notice is thereby corrected without invalidating the original notice as to
other lands or persons.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1916, § 1, effective August 4.

37-50-120. Issuance of general obligation bonds.

Statute text

(1) In the name of the district, the district may issue general obligations or bonds that shall
constitute a lien against the real property in the district. Obligations shall bear interest at a rate
such that the net effective interest rate of the issue does not exceed the maximum net effective
interest rate authorized. Interest shall be payable semiannually, and obligations may be made
payable in series becoming due not less than five years and not more than fifty years after the
date of issue. The bonds may be sold in one or more series at par, or below or above par, at
public or private sale, in such manner and for such price as the district, in its discretion, shall
determine. As an incidental expense of the issuance, the district may employ financial and legal
consultants in regard to the financing of the official plan. The district may exchange all or a part
of its bonds for all or an equivalent part of property or services included in the official plan for
which the bonds are issued, if the exchange is preceded by determination of the fair value of the
property or services exchanged for the bonds. Such determination shall be by resolution of the
board and shall be conclusive.

(2) Such bonds are to be paid from assessments levied from time to time, as the bonds and
interest thereon become due, against the taxable property in the district and not otherwise. Such
levies shall not be limited as to rate or amount; except that they shall not exceed a rate
reasonably required to yield revenues needed to pay bonds and interest as they mature, plus any
other amounts required for debt service, less the amount of any other revenues available to the
district for payment of bonds and debt service. The board shall certify, to the boards of county
commissioners of the several counties in which the district or any part thereof is located, the
amount of the levy necessary to be made upon the taxable property in the district to yield the
required revenues becoming due on all outstanding bonds at the same time that certifications of
the district's mill levy assessment for general district purposes are made. The procedure for the
assessment and collection of ad valorem taxes of the county is, except as may be otherwise
provided in this article, made applicable and is to be followed in the levy of assessments for

payment of taxes and collection of principal and debt service on such general obligations or
bonds.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1917, § 1, effective August 4.

37-50-121. Costs - board of directors to concur.
Statute text
To the extent that the costs of the proceedings for the issuance of revenue bonds are not paid by

the proceeds of the bonds, they shall be budgeted and paid out from district revenues or from the
separate district mill levy.
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History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1917, § 1, effective August 4.

37-50-122. Sinking fund.

Statute text

The district may provide for a sinking fund for the ultimate payment of any of the obligations of
the district. The sinking fund may be invested as provided in section 37-50-112.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1917, § 1, effective August 4.

37-50-123. Court confirmation.

Statute text

(1) (a) The board, on behalf and in the name of the district, may file a petition at any time, in the
district court in and for the county in which the district's principal office is maintained, for a
judicial examination and determination of any power conferred or of any taxes or rates or other
charges levied, or of any act, proceeding, or contract of the district, whether or not the contract
has been executed, including, without limitation, proposed contracts for the acquisition,
improvement, equipment, maintenance, operation, or disposal of any properties or facilities for
the benefit of the district, and so including a proposed issue of revenue warrants, revenue bonds,
special assessment bonds, or general obligation bonds, issued or to be issued on behalf of any
such entity. The petition shall set forth the facts on which the validity of such power, tax,
assessment, charge, act, proceeding, or contract is founded and shall be verified by the president
of the board.

(b) An action taken pursuant to paragraph (a) of this subsection (1) shall be in the nature of a
proceeding in rem, and jurisdiction of all parties interested may be had by publication, mail, and
posting, as provided in this article. Notice of the filing of the petition shall be given by the clerk
of the court, under the seal of the court, stating in brief outline the contents of the petition and
also stating where a full copy of any contract mentioned in the petition may be examined. The
notice shall be served by publication at least once a week for five consecutive weeks in a daily or
a weekly newspaper of general circulation published in the county in which the principal office
of the district is located by mailing copies of the notice by registered or certified mail, return
receipt requested, to the boards of county commissioners of the several counties in which the
parties in interest in such action are located, wholly or in part, and by posting the notice in the
office of the district at least thirty days before the date fixed in the notice for the hearing on the
petition. Jurisdiction shall be complete after such publication, mailing, and posting.

(c) Any owner of property in the district filing a petition pursuant to this subsection (1) or any
person interested in the petition, contract, or proposed contract may appear and move to dismiss
or answer the petition at any time before the date fixed for the hearing or within such further time
as may be allowed by the court. All persons who fail to appear shall be deemed to have
consented to the petition.

(2) The petition and notice shall be sufficient to give the court jurisdiction. Upon hearing the
petition, the court shall examine and determine all matters and things affecting the question
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submitted and shall make such findings and render such judgment and decree as the case
warrants. Costs may be divided or apportioned among any contesting parties in the discretion of
the trial court. Review of the judgment of the court may be had as in other similar cases; except
that such review shall be applied for within thirty days after the time of the rendition of such
judgment or within such additional time as may be allowed by the court within thirty days. The
Colorado rules of civil procedure shall govern in matters of pleading and practice where not
otherwise specified in this article. The court shall disregard any error, irregularity, or omission
that does not affect the substantial rights of the parties.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1917, § 1, effective August 4.

37-50-124. Election to authorize debt.

Statute text

Except for the issuance of refunding bonds or other funding or refunding of obligations that does
not increase the net indebtedness of the district, no indebtedness shall be incurred by the issuance
of general obligation bonds of the district or by any contract by which the district agrees to repay
as general obligations or other obligations constituting a "general obligation debt by loan in any
form", as such term is used in section 6 of article XI of the state constitution, of the district to the
federal government, the state, a political subdivision, or a person over a term not limited to the
then current fiscal year any project costs advanced thereby under any contract for the acquisition
or improvement of the facilities or any interest in the facilities, or for any project, advanced by
the issuance of securities of such a political subdivision or person to defray any cost of the
project or of the facilities or an interest in the project or facilities acquired and becoming a part
of the facilities of the district, or otherwise advanced, unless a proposal for issuing the district's
general obligation bonds or of incurring an indebtedness by the district by making such a
contract is submitted to the electors of the district and is approved by a majority of such electors
voting on the proposal at an election held for that purpose in accordance with this article.

History
Source: L. 2004: Entire article added, p. 1918, § 1, effective August 4.
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ATTACHMENT B



RESOLUTION OF THE
REPUBLICAN RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
(Establishing A Water Activity Enterprise)

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Republican River Water Conservation District (“District”) was created
pursuant to § 37-50-103(1), C.R.S., and pursuant to § 37-50-103(1), C.R.S., is a body corporate
under the laws of Colorado; and

WHEREAS, the District was formed for the purpose of cooperating with and assisting the

State of Colorado to carry out its duty to comply with the limitations and duties imposed upon
the State by the Republican River Compact; and

WHEREAS, the District is authorized by § 37-50-107(1)(c), CR.S., to issue bonds or
other evidence of indebtedness for the purpose of cooperating and assisting the State to carry out
its duty to comply with the limitations and duties imposed upon the State by the Republican
River Compact, including but not limited to locating ditches, irrigation works, wells, pipelines,
and reservoirs to store or utilize water for compact compliance purposes, making filings upon
such water, to initiate appropriations for compact compliance purposes, and doing and
performing all acts and things necessary or advisable to protect existing beneficial uses of water
within the District through compliance with the Republican River Compact; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 37-50-107(1)(k), C.R.S., the District is authorized to establish
a water enterprise pursuant to Article 45.1 of Title 37 of the Colorado Revised Statutes; and

WHEREAS, Colorado Constitution Art. X, Sec. 20 includes requirements with respect to
financial activities of the District except, generally, insofar as said activities take place within
enterprises owned and operated by the District; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Title 37, Article 45.1, Colorado Revised
Statutes (the "Water Activity Law"), state and local governmental entities which have their own
bonding capacity under applicable law are authorized: (i) to establish or continue to maintain
water activity enterprises for the purpose of pursuing or continuing water activities, which
includes the diversion, storage, carriage, delivery, distribution, collection, treatment, use, reuse,
augmentation, exchange, or discharge of water and includes the acquisition of water or water
rights; and (ii) to issue or reissue bonds, notes, or other obligations payable from the revenues
derived or to be derived from the function, service, benefits, or facility or from any other
available funds of the enterprise, the terms and conditions of such bonds or other obligations to
be as set forth in the resolution authorizing the same and, as nearly as practicable, as provided in
Part 4 of Article 35 of Title 31, C.R.S., relating to water revenue bonds; and

WHEREAS, in order to qualify as an activity enterprise under the Water Activity Law,
the enterprise must consist of a government water activity business owned by a governmental
entity (such as the District), which enterprise receives under 10% of its annual revenues in grants



from all Colorado state and local governments combined, and which is authorized to issue its
own revenue bonds; and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the District to formally establish the “Republican River
Water Conservation District Water Activity Enterprise” (the “Enterprise”) under the Water
Activity Law; and

WHEREAS, the District desires that the Enterprise be qualified as an enterprise and a
separate government-owned business as clarified by the Colorado Supreme Court decision in
Nicholl v. E-470 Public Highway Authority, No. 94SC307 (Colo. May 15, 1995); and

WHEREAS, the Board finds that the provision of District services through an enterprise

will contribute to the health, safety, welfare, and prosperity of the District, its residents, and
landowners;

RESOLUTION
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board, as follows:

1. Establishment of Enterprise. The Republican River Water Conservation District

Water Activity Enterprise is hereby established by the District pursuant to the Water Activity
Law.

Pursuant to Section 37-45.1-103(1), C.R.S., the Enterprise is established by the District
"for the purpose of pursuing . . . water activities, including water acquisition or water project or
facility activities, including the construction, operation, repair, and replacement of water . . .
facilities." The Enterprise shall operate as a business as the term is commonly used or judicially
defined.

The Enterprise shall consist of the business of:

(a) Operations, Services, and Programs: all of the operations, services, and programs
necessary or advisable to protect existing beneficial uses of water within the District through
compliance with the Republican River Compact, including but not limited to locating ditches,
irrigation works, wells, pipelines and reservoirs to store and utilize water for compact
compliance purposes; and

(b)  Facilities: all real and personal property acquired, operated, and held in the name
of the District as may necessary to carry out the operations, services, and programs necessary or

advisable to protect existing beneficial uses of water within the District through compliance with
the Republican River Compact; and



(¢)  Administrative equipment: all billing equipment used in the billing and collection
of fees, tolls, rates, charges and penalties for the provision of operations, services, and programs
by the Enterprise.

2. Governing Body.

(@) Board. Pursuant to the Water Activity Law, Section 37-45.1-103(3), C.R.S., the

governing body of the Enterprise ("Governing Body") shall be the Board of Directors of the
District.

(b)  Governance and By-Laws. The Governing Body shall be subject to all applicable
laws, rules, and regulations pertaining to the Board. The Governing Body may adopt such lawful
bylaws for its operations as deemed necessary or convenient by the Governing Body.

(¢)  Powers. The Goveming Body is empowered to exercise all decision-making
functions on behalf of the Enterprise.

The Governing Body, when acting on behalf of the Enterprise, may act in the name of the
Enterprise or in the name of the District.

The Goveming Body, in relation to Enterprise business, shall have all of the authority,
powers, rights, obligations, and duties as may be provided or permitted to the District in relation
to the purposes of the Enterprise by the Water Activity Law, the Republican River Water
Conservation District Act, and the Colorado Constitution.

On behalf of the Enterprise, the Governing Body shall have the power and authority to:

(1) in the name of the Enterprise or the District, make, execute and perform
contracts, take and give instruments of conveyance, and do everything necessary, pertaining or
incidental to the powers herein granted, and in so doing may make such special designations in
such instruments as will indicate the capacity in which the District is acting when such actions
are taken by or on behalf of the Enterprise, such as "the Republican River Water Conservation
District, acting by and through its Water Activity Enterprise;" provided that, notwithstanding the
foregoing, no contract, conveyance, or other instrument shall be invalidated as a result of the
failure to use any such special designation;

(2) purchase, acquire, construct, lease, condemn and purchase, extend and add to,
maintain, conduct and operate services and programs necessary or advisable to protect existing

beneficial uses of water within the District through compliance with the Republican River
Compact;

(3) institute and defend all litigation affecting Enterprise powers and duties or in

relation to the operations, services, and programs of the Enterprise and the property rights
connected therewith or incidental thereto;



(4) designate, employ, retain, contract for, and discharge a manager and such
other personnel and consultants as may be necessary or convenient to execute the policies of the
Governing Body and to perform such other functions as the Governing Body may direct, and
determine such compensation and conditions of employment or contract as the Governing Body
may determine;

(5) adopt and enforce bylaws, rules and regulations of the Enterprise, including
the ability to enforce such rules and regulations by the termination of service.

(6) fix and collect rents, rates, fees, tolls, and other charges, which rates, fees,
tolls, charges, penalties of the District shall relate to the operations, services, and programs
provided and shall apply until such time as the Governing Body acts to change the same.

(7) fix reasonable penalties for delinquencies;

(8) issue bonds, notes, or other obligations payable from the revenues derived or
to be derived from the operations, services, and programs of the enterprise, in accordance with
the Water Activity Law and other applicable law and subject to the acquisition of such elector
approval as may be required by law; authorize the issuance of such bonds, notes, or other
obligations in accordance with applicable law, acting as both the Governing Body and the Board,
however, no such bonds, notes, or other obligations shall be secured by the general revenues or
taxing power of the District.

(8) pursuant to Section 37-45.1-103(2)(b), C.R.S., contract with any other person
or entity, including other districts or enterprises.

(d  Meetings. Whenever the Board is in session, the Governing Body shall also be
deemed to be in session. It shall not be necessary for the Governing Body to meet separately
from the regular and special meetings of the Board, nor shall it be necessary for the Governing
Body to specifically announce or acknowledge that actions taken thereby are taken by the
governing body of the Enterprise. The Governing Body may conduct its affairs in the same
manner and subject to the same laws, which apply to the Board for the same or similar matters.
Public notice of meetings of the Board shall constitute such notice for the Governing Body
notwithstanding the existence or absence of a reference in such notice to the Governing Body.

3. Budgeting and Financial Management.

(@  Enterprise Budget Recommendations. The Enterprise shall provide budget
recommendations to the Board in accordance with statutory requirements and timing. The
budget of the Enterprise shall-separately set forth recommended fiscal year spending, total
revenue, reserve funds of the Enterprise in such detail as determined appropriate by the Board.

The Enterprise budget shall include the estimated dollar amounts that the Enterprise intends to
acquire from all sources.



As provided in Section 37-45.1-103(1), CR.S., the Enterprise, as "[a]ny water activity
enterprise established or maintained pursuant to this article [45.1 of Title 37, C.R.S.] is excluded
from the provisions of section 20 or article X of the state constitution.”

(b)  Administration Budget. The Board shall produce a budget for District
administration and District governmental services not readily attributable to an enterprise
("Administration").

(c)  Final Budget. The Board shall combine the budget for Administration, the budget
recommendations for the Enterprise, and such other information as may be available to the Board
to draft the budget for the District.

~ (d)  Mill Levies, Ad Valorem Taxes. In its sole discretion and subject to the
limitations of law, the Board shall determine the mill levies to be certified for District operations
and debt service. THE ENTERPRISE SHALL HAVE NO POWER WHATSOEVER TO
IMPOSE OR LEVY ANY GENERAL TAX. No evidence of indebtedness, debt, contract
subject to annual appropriation, contract, or other financial obligation of the Enterprise shall be
secured by the revenues of the District where "revenues of the District" includes all of the
sources of revenue authorized for the use of the District or includes any general taxes of the
District, regardless of whether the District has exercised the general taxing powers available to it.

The general revenue raising powers of the District shall not be deemed to be an integral part of
any Enterprise financing agreement.

()  Audit. The Governing Body may cause the Enterprise to be audited separately
from the District or as an instrumentality of the District to be included as part of the audit of the
District. An audit of the Enterprise or application for exemption from audit shall be completed
as and when required by Colorado law.

® Excess Enterprise Funds. The net earnings of the Enterprise shall be appropriated
for the necessary requirements of the Enterprise and any remaining surplus may be appropriated
to the general revenues or other funds of the District by the Board in its annual budget and
appropriations resolution or any amendment thereof.

(8  Reserves. The Governing Body may provide for such reserves for the
replacement of obsolescent or depreciated property or improvements to the System as may be
necessary.

(h)  Reports. The Enterprise shall provide such reports to the Board as the Board may
request from time to time.

4. Reimbursement of Administrative Services Provided to the Enterprise by the
District, if any. The costs of Administration provided for the Enterprise from the general
revenues of the District (i.e., such revenues as are not allocated to the Enterprise), if any, shall be
allocated to, accounted for, and paid by the Enterprise in any reasonable manner as determined
by the Board. In its discretion the Board may provide for the direct payment of such costs, in

5



which case the Enterprise shall in due course reimburse such costs to the District in any
reasonable manner as determined by the Board. No direct payment of costs by the District shall
be deemed a "grant" to the Enterprise insofar and so long as they are reimbursed by the
Enterprise within the same fiscal year.

5. Debt Allocation. As determined by the Board, the Enterprise shall be responsible
for its allocation of District debts, other financial obligations, revenue bonds, or other evidences
of indebtedness as shown in bond or contract covenants, documentation of evidence of
indebtedness, budget, or resolution of the District. Nothing herein shall permit the general taxing
power of the District to secure obligations of the Enterprise.

6. Financial Records. To the extent practicable, the financial records of the
Enterprise shall be maintained separately from the financial records of the District. Provided that
accurate records are kept of the amount of funds allocable to the Enterprise and to the District,
funds of the Enterprise and funds of the District may be commingled for purposes of investment.

7. Instrumentality, Immunity. The Enterprise shall be deemed to be an
"instrumentality” of the District as such term is used in Section 24-10-103(5), C.R.S,, and as
such is a "public entity" entitled to such benefits, burdens, and immunities as may be available to
it under the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, Part 1 of Article 10, Title 24, C.R.S.

It is declared by the District that the existence of immunity under the Colorado

- Governmental Immunity Act is consistent with the nature of a government-owned business as
the term is used in Colo. Const. Art. X, Sec. 20; that immunity from certain tort liabilities are
common to businesses, such as the Colorado ski and equestrian industries; and that the mere
existence of such immunity does not affect the status of the Enterprise.

8. Insurance.

The District may procure and maintain insurance against personal or property damage or
injury arising out of its own operations and the operations of the Enterprise in the following
amounts:

(@)  Bodily injury and property damage liability insurance with liability limits in
amounts not less than the statutory liability limits per person and per occurrence as provided in
Part 1 of Title 24, Article 10 of the Colorado Revised Statutes, as the same may be amended;

(b)  Replacement level property insurance for the facilities and equipment of the
District and Enterprise.

In the event that the District procures such insurance, the District shall name the
Enterprise as an additional insured on all such liability policies.



In the event that the District does not procure and maintain such insurance for the
Enterprise, the Enterprise may do so in its own name and shall name the District as an additional
insured on all such liability policies.

9. Maintenance of Enterprise Status. The Enterprise shall at all times conduct its
affairs so as to continue to qualify as a "water activity enterprise" within the meaning of §37-
45.1-102, C.R.S., and as an "enterprise" within the meaning of Article X, Section 20, Colorado
Constitution. Specifically, but not by way of limitation, the Enterprise is not authorized to, and
shall not, receive 10% or more of its annual revenue in grants from all Colorado state and local
governments combined, including the District.

10.  Disqualification, Cure. In the event that the Enterprise is disqualified as an
enterprise by a court of competent jurisdiction, the Governing Body intends to cure the defects in
the organization or operation of the Enterprise as soon as possible following the date of the final
judgment of such court; but in no case shall such a disqualification of the Enterprise be construed
as working a disqualification of any other enterprise that may have been organized by the
District. Any disqualifying grant may, upon approval of the Board, be returned to the grantor,
or, if appropriate, placed in escrow by the grantor for the benefit of the Enterprise or District to
accomplish the intent of the grantor while maintaining the Enterprise status of the District's
disputed Enterprise.

11.  Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this Resolution
shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of

such section, paragraph, clause, or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of
this Resolution, the intent being that the same are severable.

12.  Additional Enterprises. The District may, in its discretion, designate additional
enterprises or divide the Republican River Water Conservation District Water Activity
Enterprise into smaller units, in the future as may be in the best interests of the District.

RESOLVED this ﬁday of D ohhese 2004,

ATTEST: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REPUBLICAN RIVER WATER
CONSERVATION DISTRICT

President
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REPUBLICAN RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

- STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
December 31, 2005

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS ‘ o
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2) . .- = - $ 2,511,863
Accounts Receivable (Note 3) L I 18,540
Total Current Assets v e A 2,530,403
CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 4) |
- Depreciable: . ‘ S
Vehicles RN R 27,847
Less: Accumulated Depreciation . =~ - (2,785)
Net Capital Assets” - - B P 25,062
Total Assets | I 2,555,465
CURRENT LIABILITIES A
Accounts Payable < s ' ’ T 23,278
EQIP Contracts - Well Retu'emcnt (N ote 5) . 123,503
Payroll Llabﬂmes - . 1,554
Total Current L1ab111t1es L ' 148,335
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
EQIP Contracts - Well Retu'ement (Note 5) _ _ 155,426
Total Long-Term Liabilities = | 155,426
Total Liabilities o - o 303,761
NET ASSETS v _
Investment in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 25,062
Restricted Net Assets (Note 8) 20,957
Unrestricted Net Assets 2,205,685
Total Net Assets $ 2,251,704

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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OPERATING EXPENSES

ke

REPUBLICAN RIVER WATER COI‘ISERVATION DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES. AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2005

OPERATING REVENUES
Irrigation Assessment Fees

Commercial and Municipal Well Assessment °

Surface Evaporative Loss Fees
Total Operating Revenues

County Treasurers' Fees
Depreciation (Note 4)

EQIP Contracts

Telephone -

Vehicle Expense '
Total Operating Expenses

Income from Operations -
Before G&A Expenses -

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits and Taxes .
Office Lease :
Engineering Fees
Legal Fees : _
Accounting and Audlt Fees
Office. Start-Up - - '
Other Professxonal Fees )
Dues and Subscriptions
Insurance
Directors' Compensanon and Expense
Other

Total General and Adm1mstrat1ve Expenses

OPERATING INCOME

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest Income
Other Income
Interest Expense

Total Non-Operating Revenues
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, Beginning of Year

NET ASSETS, End of Year

$ 2,900,499
43,161
16,142

1) b}

87,756
2,785
370,508
"3,503
3,207

- 467,759

2,492,043

54,417
13,220 -
5,110
11,393
71,247
11,136
15,128
4,478
580
5,502
31,456
7,154

230,821

2,261,222

47,405
4,000
(2,203)

49,202

2,310,424
- (58,720)

$ 2,251,704

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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REPUBLICAN RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash Received from Customers A $ 2,941,262
Cash Paid to Suppliers . . (363,874)
Cash Paid to Employees - (71,031)
Net Cash Provided by Operatm _ 2,506,357
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CA] ANCING ACTIVITIES -
Principal Paid on Loans ' T (201,000)
Interest Paid on Loans (2,203)
Interest Income B 47,405
Other Income ol s , 4,000
Net Cash Used by Non—CapxtaI Fi cmg Activities - (151,798)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED - -
FINANCING ACTIVITIE o .
Acquisition of Capital A$: (27,847
Net Cash Used by Capital
Financing Activities ° (27,847)
NET INCREASE IN CAS 2,526,712
- CASH AND CASH E! 185,151
CASH AND CASH EQUIVA 2,511,863
RECONCILIATION OF OPER
PROVIDED BY OPERATING-_ \
Operating Income ' <_ : _ 2,261,222
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECON CILE OPERATING INCOME
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Depreciation S 2,785
Changes in Assets and L1ab1ht1es.
Accounts Receivable : (18,540)
Accounts Payable , (14,643)
Accrued Payroll _ (4,950)
EQIP Contracts Payable 278,929
Payroll Liabilities : 1,554
Total Adjustments 245,135
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 2,506,357

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTE 1:

- fevénues-of the D1str1ct’

REPUBLICAN RIVER WATER CON_SERVATION DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005

'SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity *:
Republican River
governmental unit
with Colorado Statute
the Repubhcan Rlver‘Co

ict -.(District) is a Colorado
fund while in, accordance
to_provide compliance with
f Colorado.

on behalf of th”-e

The District is not mclu_ d in the fmancral Stz ten;ents of any other entity. The

District has no component umts

Basis of Accountmg PRI
Enterprise fund accountmg is utﬂlzed m accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles..' Enterprise furids recognize revenues and expenses on the
accrual basis’ ting. Revenue i rec" gmz"'d when earned, and expenses

Propnetary funds’f"
operating items. Ope _'gf revenues and expenses generally result from
providing servxces ani n
proprtetary fund’s prin going ;:Opcranons “The principal operatmg
enterprise fund are special assessment fees charged to
1 rights and water usage.  Operating expenses for
enterprise funds 1nc’ cost of sales and services, administrative expenses,
and deprecratron on'ca assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this

deﬁmtlon are reported as non-operatmg revepues and expenses

landowners for thelr

The District apphes all appllcable Governmental Accountmg Standards Board
(GASB) pronouncements “as- well as Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Statements and Interpretattons, Accountmg Prmc1p1es .Board (APB)
Opinions, and Accounting ResearchBulletins (ARB) of ‘the committee on
accounting procedures issued on or before November 30, 1989, that do not
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.




NOTE 1:

REPUBLICAN RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contimied)
December 31, 2005

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

CapxtalAssets ‘ SV '

The District capitalizes. assets valued over. $5 ,000. Assets are stated at cost,
developer’s cost, or- ,-estunated_ fair market value at the time of donation.
Depreciation is recogmzed using the straxght—lme method over the asset’s
estimated useful lives o, one o forty years.: Deprec1at10n begins in the year
following completion- for ets under construction, : Water rights, and the costs

10 obtain those rlghts are capltahzed but not deprecmted

Irrigation Assessment Fees o

Irrigation Assessment Fees are the District’s primary means of revenue. These
fees are paid by the property owner, along with property taxes, to the County
Treasurer. They are payable in full on April 30 or in two installments on
February 28 and June 15. The Counties of which the District is comprised
collects the taxes for. the District and Temits them by the 10th of the month
following the month of collecnon -

Budgets v _ '
Each fall the Board of Dn'ectors adopts a budget and approprlates funds for the
followmg calendar year. Unused approprlatlons lapse at year-end.

All budget hearmgs are open to the public. An amendment to the budget
through supplemental appropnatxon is subject to approval of the Board of
Directors at a public hearing -and the filing of the approved supplemental
approprlatlon w1th the State of Colorado. ‘ :

The basis of these budgcts is Non-GAAP, in that revenues and expenditures are
budgeted on the modified accrual basis of accountmg This basis of accounting
records transactions based upon the "flow of funds." Revenues are recognized
when funds are available and measurable, and expenditures are recognized when
incurred.

Cash Flows _

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash on hand and demand, money market and savings accounts at financial
institutions. Repurchase agreements, certificates of deposit, and U.S. Treasury
Notes, including those with maturities of three months or less, are classified as
investments and are not reflected as cash in the statement of cash flows.
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NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

REPUBLICAN RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 2005 -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT‘ ACCOUNTIN G POLICIES (Continued)

Net Assets e LR

Net assets represent' ithe dlfference between assets and liabilities. Net assets
invested in capital assets, tof,related debt, consists . of capital assets, net of -
accumulated deprectatxon, ced by the outstandmg ‘balances of any borrowing
tructron or nnprovement ‘of those assets. This net
by any bond issuance deferral amounts. Net assets

asset amount also is : d'u

are reported as restricted. when there are limitations imposed on their use, either - -

through the enabling leglslatlon adopted by the ‘District or through external

restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, . or laws or regulations of other

governments, All other net assts are reported as unrestricted.

The Dtstrlct apphes restrrcted resources ﬁrst when an expense is incurred for
purposes for whtch both restrlctcd and unrestncted net assets are avallable

Use of Estiin es 'in'the Preparatron of Financial Statements

The preparatron of fmanc1al statements in conforrmty ‘with generally accepted
accounting prmcxples requu'es management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
durmg the’p rxod Actual results could dlffer from those esttmates

CASH DEPOSITS. AND CASﬁ ‘EQUIVALENTS

Cash Depos1ts L -

For purposes: of these fmancral statements, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash on hand and demand money market and savmgs accounts at financial
institutions.

The Colorado Public Deposrt Protection Act (PDPA), requues that all units of
local government deposit cash in eligible public depositories. Eligibility is
determined by state regulators. ~Amounts on deposit in excess .of federal
insurance levels must be collateralized. The eligible collateral is determined by
the PDPA. PDPA allows the institution to create a single collateral pool for all
public funds. The pool for all the uninsured public deposits as a group is to be
maintained by another institution or held in trust. The market value of the
collateral must be at least equal to 102% of the aggregate uninsured deposits..

The State Regulatory Commissions for banks and financial services are required
by Statute to monitor the naming of éligible depositories and reportmg of the
uninsured deposits and assets maintained in the col]ateral pools.
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NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

NOTE 4:

REPUBLICAN RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continded)
December 31, 2005

CASH DEPOSITS AND CASH EQUIV ALENTS {Continued)

Custodial Credit stk Deposzts

Custodial credit risk is. the I‘lSk that in the event of bank failure, the District’s -
deposits may not bé re tumed to it. The District does not have a deposit policy’
for custodial credit;risk. -: As of December 31; 2005 the carrying amount-of the
District’s cash and cash ‘equivalents was $2,511,863; and the bank balance -
totaled $2,529,595..  Of the bank balances, -$757,780 represents deposits -
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust
department or agent in the enuty s name. .-

ACCOUNTS RBCEIVABLE

The accounts recelvable balance mcludes amounts due from District customers.
The District uses the allowarice method to recogmze bad debts. No allowance .
for bad debts was recorded at December 31 2005. ' '

CAPITAL ASSETS |

A summary of changes to capital assets for 2005 follows:

: " Balance Balance
December 31, . v December 31,
© . 2004 Additions Deletions - 2005
Depreciable: ' A
Automobile $ - 8§ 27847 §. T $ 27,847
Total
Depreciable 27,847 27,847
Accumulated
Depreciation (2,785) _ (2,785) -
Total Capital -
Assets, Net § . § 25062 $ . 3 25106_2

9




NOTE 5:

NOTE 6:

REPUBLICAN RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) -
December 31, 2005

LONG-TERM DEBT COMMITMENTS

Entering 2005, the District was carrying $201,000 in loans. * The entxre
$201,000 was paid in full during 2005. Also during 2005, the District entered
into Environmental Quahty Incentive Program (EQIP) . contracts _ with
landowners. Payments for these contracts aré dlsbursed over three years.. The
following information sumimarizes the debt actlvxty and the outstandmg EQIP
contract obhgatlons T . S

Balince™ ST Balance

December 31, S December 3, Dueln
2004 - - Additions  : Deletions 2005 - OneYear
Highline Electric =~ - R =
Loan $ 67,000 $ - $ 67,000 $ $
KC Blectric Loan 67,000 S 61,000
YW Electric Loan 67,000~ 67,000
EQIP Contracts - ..' ”'“370,5_08 91,579 . 278,929 123,503

Tdtal L § 201,099 $ 370,598 §- 292!579 § 278929  § 123.503

RECONCILIATION OF PROPRIETARY (GAAP) REVENUES AND
EXPENSES TO BUDGETARY REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

The Dlstnct preparcs its budget annually. The budget comparison in this report
is presented on a Non-GAAP budgetary basis. The foIlowmg reconciliation is
presented to reconcﬂe to the GAAP basis financial statements :

Operating Revenues - GAAP Basis $ 2,959,802
Non-Operating Revenues - GAAP Basis . _ 51,405
Total Revenues - GAAP Basis - i 3,011,207

Adjustments '

Total Revenues, Budgetary Basis 3,011,207
Operating Expenses - GAAP Basis ’ 698,580
Non-Operating Expenses - GAAP Basis 2,203

Total Expenses - GAAP Basis 700,783

Add: Capital Outlay 27,847

Less: Depreciation and Amortization (2,78%)

Total Expenses, Budgetary Basis 725,845

10



NOTE 7:

NOTE 8:

REPUBLICAN RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 2005

RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage
to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and

natural disasters. In order to.manage these I‘lSkS the District has purchased .

commercial i msurance w1th various deductlbles

TABOR REQUIREMENTS

In 1992, Colorado voters approved Amendment 1, commonly known as the
Taxpayer’s Bill of Rights (TABOR), which adds a new Section 20 to Article X
of the Colorado Constitution. TABOR contains tax, spending, revenue and debt
limitations which apply to the State of Colorado and all local governments.

Enterprises, defined as govermnent owned busmesses authonzed to issue
revenue bonds and receiving less than 10% of annual revenue in grants from all
state and local governments combmed. are- excluded from the provisions of
TABOR. ‘ R

TABOR estabhshes 1992 as the m1t1a1 base for spending and revenue lmnts
Future ‘spending and revenue limits can be adjusted for inflation and local
growth without voter approval. TABOR requires the establishment of
Emergency Reserves that must be at least 3% of spending (excluding bonded

debt service). Excess funds within the spending and revenue limits can be
reserved for general ; use and, when spent in subsequent years, are not subject to

the spending limits mcntloned above,

The total amount of restrlcted net assets for emergency reserves at December
31, 2005 was $20,957. o

TABOR requires, with certain exceptions, voter approval prior to imposing new
taxes, increasing taxes or spending above the limits prescribed above, increasing
a mill levy, or implementing a tax policy change directly causing a net tax
revenue gain to any local government. Multiple-fiscal year debt requires voter

approval except for bond refinancing at lower interest rates or adding employees

to existing pension plans.

11



REPUBLICAN RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cbntinued) ’
December 31, 2005 -

NOTES:  TABOR REQUIREMENTS (.Coﬁtinued)

NOTE 9:

For the year ended Decembcr 31 2005, expendxtures exceeded the appropnated
budget for the DlStl‘lCt EERREEE'S TN
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REPUBLICAN RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
Statement of Net Assets
December 31, 2006

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit
Accounts receivable
Total Current Assets

Capital Assets
Equipment
Vehicle
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Net Capital Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Payroll liabilities
Current portion of long-term
Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
CREP contracts
EQIP contracts - well retirement
Outright Leases
Total Long-Term Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Net Assets
Investment in capital assets, net
of related debt
Restricted for TABOR
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

See auditor’s report and notes to the financial statements.

938,755
3,523,036
52,673

23,248
4,623
645,255

2,004,771
928,126
58,825

25,517
133,600
716,017

Page?2

4,514,464

673,125

2,991,722

3,664,847

75,135



Page 3
REPUBLICAN RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

OPERATING REVENUES
Trrigation assessment fees 2,866,249
Commercial & Municipal well assessment 42,372
Surface evaporative water loss 17493
Total Operating Revenues 2,926,113
OPERATING EXPENSES
County Treasurer fees 86,128
EQIP & CREP contracts 4,041,259
Telephone 4450
Traming 725
Travel expenses : 12,969
Vehicle expenses 51
Depreciation 6,033
CIG grants 14,508 :
Total Operating Expenses 4,166,125
GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries & wagers 86,287
Employee benefits 22,350
Office expenses ' ) 20,357
Accounting & audit fees 19,362
Engineering fees 21,050
Legal fees 54,406
Lobbyist fees 11,232
Other professional fees 10,962
Insurance 7,194
Directors expenses 31,896
Promotion/advertising 2.071
Total General & Administrative Expenses 287.167
TOTAL EXPENSES 4,453,292
OPERATING INCOME (1,527,178)
OTHER INCOME
Interest income 133,034
Interest on fees 17,282
Insurance claim proceeds 295
Total Other Income 150.610
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS : (1,376,568)
NET ASSETS - Beginning 2.251,703
NET ASSETS - Ending 875,135

See auditor’s report and nofes to the financial statements.




REPUBLICAN RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from fees
Paid for salaries & benefits
Paid for Board compensation
Paid to well owners
Paid to suppliers
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of fixed assets

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest income
Other income
Cash Used by Non-Capital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Certificates of deposit

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH - Beginning of year

CASH - End of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERTING INCOME TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Depreciation
Changes in Assets & Liabilities
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable
Payroll liabilities
Contracts payable
Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities-

See auditor’s report and notes to the financial statements.

Page 4

2,805,352
(120,483)

(13,100)
(683,212)

(183,250)
1,805,808

(6,489)

150,316
295
150,610

(3,523,036)
(1,573,107)

2,511,863

938,755

(1,527,178)

6,033

(34,133)
(30)
3,069
3,358,047
3,332,986

1,805,808



Page 5
REPUBLICAN RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT R
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2006 .
(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

Réporting Entity - the District is a governmental unit operating with a sole enterprise fund while in
accordance with Colorado Statute. The District was established to provide compliance with the
Republican River Compact on behalf of the State of Colorado. {A

]

The District is considered to be a primary government because it has a separate govemning body,
it is legally separate, and it is fiscally independent of other state and local governments. It has
no component units. Neither is it a component unit of any other entity.

Basis of Accounting - enterprise fund accounting is utilized in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Enterprise funds recognize revenues and expenses on the accrual basis
of accounting. Revenue is recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized when
incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the District are special assessment fees charged to landowners
for their water usage. Operating expenses for the fund include cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

———

The District applies all Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements,
as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations,
Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins (ARB) of
the committee on accounting procedures issued on or before November 30, 1989, that do not
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

Capital Asscts - the District capitalizes assets valued over $5,000. Assets are stated at cost,
developer’s cost, or estimated fair market value at the time of donation. Depreciation is
recognized using the straight-line method over the assets estimated useful lives of one to forty
years. Depreciation begins in the year following completion for assets under construction.
Water rights, and the costs to obtain those rights, are capitalized but not depreciated.

Irrigation Assessment Fees - the District’s primary means of revenue. These fees are paid by the
property owner, along with property taxes, to the County Treasurer. They are payable in fullon L
April 30 or in two installments on February 28 and June 15. The Counties of which the District
is comprised collects the taxes and fees and remits them by the 10" of the month following the
month of collection. -




Page 6
REPUBLICAN RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2006
(continued)

Budgets - each fall the Board of Directors adopt a budget and appropriates funds for the following
calendar year. Unused appropriations lapse at year end.

All budget hearings are open to the public. An amendment of the budget through supplemental
appropriation is subject to approval of the Board of Directors at a public hearing and the filing
of the approved supplemental appropriation with the State of Colorado.

The basis of these budgets is Non-GAAP, in that revenues and expenditures are budgeted on
the modified accrual basis of accounting. This basis of accounting records transactions based
upon the “flow of funds”. Revenues are recognized when funds are aviilable and measurable,
and expenditures are recognized when incurred. :

Cash Flows - for purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on
hand and demand, money market and savings accounts at financial institutions. Repurchase
agreements, certificates of deposit, and U.S. Treasury Notes, including those with maturities of
three months or less, are classified as investments and are not reflected as cash in the statement
of cash flows.

|

Net Assets - represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital
assets, net of related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced
by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets. This net asset amount also is adjusted by any bond issuance
deferral amounts. Net assets are reported as restricted when there limitations imposed on their
use, either through the enabling legislation adopted by the District or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. All
other net assets are reported as unrestricted.

The District applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for
which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

Use of Estimates - the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses during the period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.



: Page 7
REPUBLICAN RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2006
(continued)

(2)  CASH DEPOSITS AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash Deposits - for purpose of these financial statements, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on
hand and demand, money market and savings accounts at financial institutions.

The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA), requires that all units of local government
deposit cash in eligible public depositories. Eligibility is determined by state regulators.
Amounts on deposit in excess of federal insurance levels must be collateralized. The eligible
collateral is determined by the PDPA. PDPA allows the institution to create a single collateral
pool for all public funds. The pool for all the uninsured public deposits as a group is to be
maintained by another institution or held in trust. The market value of the collateral must be at
least 102% of the aggregate uninsured deposits. The State Regulatory Commissions for banks
and financial services are required by statute to monitor the naming of eligible depositories and
reporting of the uninsured deposits and assets maintained in the collateral pools.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits -- Custodial credit risk is ‘the risk that, in the event of bank failure,
the District’s deposits may not be returned to it. The District does not have a deposit policy for
custodial credit risk.

Deposits are in 18 financial institutions and listed by appropriate risk category as follows:

Bank Carrying

: Balance Balance

On hand 8

Insured (FDIC) 1,400,000 1,383,862

Uninsured: Collateral held by District’s

agent in agent’s name 3,365,729 3.077.921

Total Cash : 4,765,729 4,461,791
Shown as certificates of deposit (3,523,036)

Shown as cash & cash equivalents 938,755

(3)  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The accounts receivable balance includes amounts due from District customers. The District uses the
allowance method to recognize bad debts. No allowance for bad debts was deemed necessary at
December 31, 2006.
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Page 8
REPUBLICAN RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2006
(continued)

(4)  CAPITAL ASSETS
A summary of changes to capital assets for 2006 follows:

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deletions December 31

Equipment -0- 6,489 -0- 6,489
Automobile 27.847 -0- -0- 27.847
Total 27,847 6,489 -0- 34,336

Accumulated
Depreciation 2,785 6,033 ~0- 8,818
Net Capital Assets 25,062 456 ~=0- 25518

(5)  LONG-TERM DEBT
Changes in Long-Term Debt

Balance Balance

January 1 Additions Reductions December 31
EQIP contracts 278,929 1,554,135 390,675 1,442,389

CREP contracts -0- 2,181,117 132,412 2,048,705
Leases payable -0- 306,008 160,125 145,883
Total 278,929 4,041,260 683,212 3,636,976

Beginning in 2005, the District began entering into Environmental Quality Inventive Program (EQIP)
contracts with landowners. Payments for these contracts are disbursed over three to five years. The
following information summarizes the annual payments due on the outstanding EQIP contract
obligations:

Duein
Year Amount
2007 514,263
2008 359,577
2009 286,222
2010 275,015
2011 7,312
Total 1,442,389
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REPUBLICAN RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

(continued)

Beginning in 2006, the District began entering into Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program
(CREP) contracts with landowners, Payments for these contracts are disbursed over 15 years, The
following information summarizes the annual payments due on the outstanding CREP confract

obligations:

Duein
_Year
2007

2008

2009

2010

2011
2012-2016
2017-2021
Total

Also in 2006, the District entered into leases with the landowners. These lease are from 2 to 4 years.

Amount
43,934
42,059
42,059
42,059

514,040

682,277

_ 682,277
2,048,705

The following information summarizes the annual amounts due for the leases.

Due in

Year Amount

2007 87,058

2008 29,412

2009 29413

Total 145,883
Total long-term commitments
Due in

Year Amount

2007 645,255

2008 431,048

2009 357,694

2010 317,074

2011 521,352

2012-2016 682,277

2017-2021 682,277

Total 3,636,977
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(continued)

., (6)  RECONCILIATION OF PROPRIETARY (GAAP) REVENUES AND EXPENSES
[ ] TO BUDGETARY REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

The District prepares its budget annually. The budget comparison in this report is presented on a Non-
GAAP budgetary basis. The following reconciliation is presented to reconcile to the GAAP basis
financial statements. ‘

Operating Revenues - GAAP basis 2,926,113
Non-Operating Revenues - GAAP basis 150,610
Total Revenues - GAAP basis 3,076,723
Adjustments 0
Total Revenues - Budgetary basis 3,076,723
Operating Expenses - GAAP basis 4,453,291
Add Capital Outlay 6,489

Less Depreciation (6.033)
Total Expenses - Budgetary Basis 4,453,747

(7)  RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss to related torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees; and natural disasters. In order to manage these
risks, the District has purchased commercial insurance with various deductibles.

J (83)  TABOR REQUIREMENTS

In 1992, Colorado voters approved Amendment 1, commonly know as the Taxpayer’s Bill of Rights
(TABOR), which adds a new Section 20 to Article X of the Colorado Constitution. TABOR contains

l tax, spending, revenue and debt limitations which apply to State of Colorado and all iocal
governments.
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(continued)

Enterprise, defined as government owned businesses authorized to issue revenue bonds and receiving
less than 10% of annual revenues in grants from all state and local governments combined, are
excluded from the provision of TABOR. : :

TABOR establishes 1992 as the initial base for spending and revenue limits. Future spending and
revenue limits can be adjusted for inflation and local growth without voter approval. TABOR requires
the establishment of Emergency Reserves that must be at least 3% of spending (excluding bonded debt
service). Excess funds within the spending and revenue limits can be reserved for general use and,
when spent in subsequent years, are not subject to the spending limits mentioned above.

The total amount of restricted net assets for emergency reserves at December 31, 2006 is $133,600.

TABOR requires, with certain exceptions, voter approval prior to imposing new taxes, increasing
taxes, or spending above the limits described above, increasing a mill levy, or implementing a tax
policy change directly causing a net tax revenue gain to any local government. Multiple-fiscal year
debt requires voter approval except for bond refinancing at lower interest rates or adding employees to
existing pension plans,

The District’s management believes it is in compliance with the provisions of TABOR. However,

TABOR is complex and many of the provisions, including the calculation of fiscal year spending
limits, growth factors and qualifications as an Enterprise, will require judicial interpretation.

BUDGETARY COMPLIANCE

For the year ended December 31, 2006, expenditures exceeded the budgeted amount.

J 1 0 31 T3 /)
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12/06/07
Accrual Basis

Balance Sheet

RRWCD Water Activity Enterprise

As of September 30, 2007
Sep 30, 07
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
Bank of Colorado - Checking 244,533.19
Bank of Colorado - Savings 1,025,298.66
Bank of Burlington CD #014135 32,035.55
BOC- Holyoke CD #6340002824 54,403.89
BOC Yuma CD #1000000421 108,764.82
BOC Yuma CD #11000000758 278,802.75
BOC Yuma CD #1000001196 231,767.95
BOW- Burlington CD #864-853551 42,918.06
BOW- Burlington CD #864-854195 125,625.91
BOW- Holyoke CD #895-853851 69,816.17
CNB-Akron CD #1136332 181,040.62
CNB-Akron CD #1136492 52,705.47
FNB- Burlington CD #5323717 125,733.45
FNB- Burlington CD #5523475 54,411.17
FNB- Haxtun CD #400006510 109,606.80
FNB- Hugo CD #72771 10,633.92
FNB- Julesburg CD #33165 107,851.70
FNB- Kirk CD #6095190 108,675.91
FNB- Kirk CD #6095234 52,578.59
FNB- Stratton CD #008401 270,403.00
FNB- Fleming CD #6226 10,380.31
FNB-Fleming CD #6177 26,917.37
FNB- Kirk CD #6095189 272,485.61
FPNB- Holyoke CD #12035 109,865.17
FPNB- Holyoke CD #12250 167,926.80
FPNB- Wray CD #11856 107,143.27
FPNB- Wray CD #12430 73,609.18
FPNB - Wray CD #12883 200,000.00
HP Bank- Flagler CD #011303 109,728.75
KC State Bank CD #31972 108,774.79
Sunwest Banks CDARS#1002403079 1,002,456.03
WSB- CD #5480 273,468.10
WSB- CD #5481 163,239.24
WSB- CD #5838 210,604.56
Petty Cash 25.25
Total Checking/Savings 6.114,323.11
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Recelvable 48,127.80
Total Accounts Recelvable 49,127.80
Total Current Assets 6,163,450.91
Fixed Assets
Depreciable Assets 34,335.50
Accumulated Depreciation -8,818.30
Total Fixed Assets 25,517.20
TOTAL ASSETS 6,188,968.11
LIABLILITIES & EQUITY
Llabitities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable 20,222 18
Total Accounts Payable 20,222.18
Other Current Liabilities
CREP 08 - Current 43,934.00
EQIP Contracts - Current 514,262.88
Qutright Leases - Current 87,067.70
Total Other Current Liabilitias 645,254.58
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1:34 PM RRWCD Water Activity Enterprise

12106107 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of September 30, 2007
Sep 30, 07
Total Current Liabllitles 665,476.76
Long Term Liabllities
CREP 06 - Long-Term 2,004,771.00
EQIP Contracts - Long-Term 928,125.78
Qutright Leases - Long-Term 58,825.00
Total Long Term Liabilitles 2,991,721.79
Total Liablllties 3,657,198.55
Equity
Retained Earnings 875,134.55
Net Income 1,656,635.01
Total Equity 2,531,769.56
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 6,188,968.11
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12/06/07
Accrual Basls

RRWCD Water Activity Enterprise

Ordinary Incoma/Expense
Income

Commercial Groundwater Wells

Groundwater Irrigated Lands

Refunds and Accruals

Profit & Loss

January through September 2007

Groundwater Irrigated Lands - Other

Total Groundwater Irrigated Lands
Municlpal Groundwater Wells

Interest Income
Savings Interest
CD Interest
Checking Interest
Treasurer's Interest

Total Interest Income

Surface Evaporative Water Loss
Total Income
Expense

CIG Grants
County Treasurer Fees
Fringe Benefits
Health [nsurance
Medicare
PERA

Total Fringe Benefits

Insurance & Bonding
Meeting Expenses
Office Expense

Rent

Supplies

Miscellaneous

Total Office Expense

Payroll Expenses
Admin Assistant
Manager's Payroll
Officer’s Payroll
Board Compensation

Total Payroll Expenses

Professional Services
Accounting
Consulting
Engineering
Legal
Lobbyist
Webhsite

Total Professional Services

Telephone/internet
Travel

Lodging

Meals

Mileage

Other

Total Travel

Vehicle Expense
Fuel
Reimbursement
Reapairs

Total Vehicle Expense

Jan - Sep 07
26,396.06
-1,310.88
2,702,148.02
2,700,835.14
16,992.13
20,413.14
121,430.14
9,612.93
8.450.85
159,807.06
15,458.10
2,919,488.49
11,606.00
80,708.94
7,734.21
1,109.07
8,388.26
17,231.54
3,349.14
6.046.08
5,816.00
7,331.82
1,045.24
13,993.06
20,500.00
45,187.47
10,800.00
18,775.00
95,262.47
28,748.14
18,227.87
25,167.94
756,753.72
5,861.23
830.50
1564,589.40
2,714,092
4,470.23
2,062.82
10,891.22
2.223.46
19,647.73
3,182.83
-4,500.00
409.12
-908.05
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1:33 PM RRWCD Water Activity Enterprise

12106/07 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January through September 2007

Jan - Sep 07

Total Expense

404,241.23

Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense
Other Expense
Parmanent Retirement
CREP 06
CREP Cost Share 22,395.79
CREP 06 - Other 186,945.90

Total CREP 06 209,341,689

EQIP 05 66,809.68
EQIP 06 316,859.31
EQIP 07 28,672.00

Total Permanent Retirement

T